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For the 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now in session. 

THE PRESIDENT: Minister Golunsky. 

M R , GOLUNSKY: If the Tribunal please, 

about the names of those two sailors killed on those 

ships, I have verified the whole matter and it shows 

that there is no mistake in translation and, as it 

appears from the document, the situation is this. 

On the seas December l8 the ship "Svirstroy" was 

shelled by Japanese and two men, Kovernikov and 

Elagln, were killed. This is exhibit 819. 

As for the second ship, "Sergey Laso," 

mentioned in the exhibit 820, it was not shelled; 

it was only bombed from the airplanes and nobody was 

killed during this bombing on this ship. After this 

the crews of all the ships were brought ashore and 

pooled together, and when they were ashore a shell 

from an English ship broke into the house where they 

lived and two men, Krlvoruchko and Bochko, were 

killed by that shell. The document does not show 

from which ship those two men were but their names 

are mentioned In both exhibits, 819 and 820. 

'7ith the Tribunal's permission, I would 

like to take another matter up now about the document 

2462. 
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THE PRii;SIDENTs Mr. Blewett。 

MEし BLETTilTTs If the Court please, on the l6th 

I olojected to the admission of document 2462 on the 

ground that no rule had been requested for the admis-

sion of the excerpt» 

THE PRSSIDEI^IT J That number does not recall 

the document to ne. Has it been admitted? 

IF . 3L^"ETT； It was refused, your Honor. 

"'e have now checked the ne那paper from which this is 

an item and, while there may "be other objections sus-

tained as to the introduction, to save time, I shall 

withdraw ny objection to its admission. 

THE PR:3SIDEI'IT ； Fa J or ^urness. 

IF-. FIPcNESS: If the Court please, at the 

close of yesterday's proceeding the prosecutor nade 

a statement which appears on pape 8C54 of the record。 

I quote： "I conclude my s tatement with a presentation 

of several documents proving that up till 1945, in-

clusive, the Japanese Government, including the 

defendants TOJO and SHIGEHITSU, repeatedly proclaimed 

their loyalty to the alliance で7ith Hitlerite Germany.“ 

Following that statement there was intro-

duced Into evidence as exhibit 825, a d©cument dealing 

with economic agreements between C-ernany, Ital:, and 

Japan, dated January 2 1 , 1 9 4 3。ェ wish to deny any 
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implication that SHIGTiS-ITSU had anything to do with 

these agreements and call attention to the fact that 

exhibit 123 shovrs that he did not become Foreign 

I'inister or part of the Government until April 20, 

1943. 

THE PRIHSIDMTs Yes, General Vasiliev. 

GENERiiL VASILIEV; I shall present in evi-

dence the text of this statement of the defendant 

TOJO, the then Prime Minister, on the occasion of 

the declaration of war by Germany end Italy on the 

United States of America and of the conclusion by 

Japan of the military agreement rith Germany and 

Italy, This statement was published in t he newspaper 

"Asahi" on December 1 2 , 1 9 4 1 , document No, 2462. At 

the same time I present for identification th±s nev,’s-

paper in a file for December, 194-1. 

THE ミ Admitted on the usual terns. 

CLERK OF THTH COURT t Prosecution's docunent 

No. 2462 v,'±ll be given exhibit No. 826 for Identifica-

tion only and the excerpt therefrom bearing the same 

document number will be given exhibit No. 826-A. 

('"hereupon, prosecution's document 

No. 2462 was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 

826 for identification; the excerpt therefrom 

was marked iDrosecution's exhibit No. 826-A and 
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was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL V A S I L I S V ;エ quote an excerpt from 

TOGO‘s statement: 

"The world is no^v divided into two groups ； 

one thpt vainly struggles to maintain the status quo, 

and the other, who earnestly strives to establish the 

rightful new order 5 and they are fighting the greatest 

battle that has ever occurred in history。 

"マith just cause and substantial power, I 

believe without doubt victory is ours. 

"I now offer my hearty congratulations on 

the alliance of the three countries In "becoming 

stronger than ever, and herewith express my firm belief 

in our glorious firture。'’ 

'The-Second document showing the tenacity 

in the realization of aims of the conspiracy and the 

unity in aggressive war of the Geman-Italian-

Japanese bloc is a radio address of the defendant 

SHIC-EMITSU made on September 2 7 , 1 9 4 3 , on the occasion 

of the third anniversary of conclusion of the Tri-

partite Pact. The text of this speech has been taken 

from a symposium of Official Announcements Concerning 

Foreign Relations. The entire publication has already 

been presented by me for identification and two pub-

lished speeches concerning the questlonnnder 
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consideration are presented in evidence, exhibit 

773-A. 

I rmote brief excerpts from this speech 

containing the gist of the matter, page 1 of the 

English text5 

"“% are marching forward toward the fulfill-

ment of our preat nlssion with an unfaltering spirit 

regardless of 可hat happens on t he way。 No matter to 

machinations and maneuvers Britain and Anerica 

may resort in order to induee the Badoglio regime to 

fresh acts of betrayal and bad faitn, the Axis 

Alliance remains unshaken。 The Pact of Alliance 

shines forth as brightly as ever to illumine our 

road to victory.” 

I omit a few lines. 

"It Is because our very existence was . 

actually endangered that v̂ e have at last taken up 

the s”rord。 Indeed, this war is to us no other than 

a war of self-defense. This is precisely the reason 

r'hy we have steeled our determination to fight it 

through until via Fain the ultimate victory.” 

The third document iwhlch I present in 

evidence on this same Issue Is a speech of the 

defendant TOJO, the then Prime Minister, made on 

A p r i l 1 5 , 1 9 4 4 , st a meeting of Mixed Specialists 
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Commission convened in accordance ”ith the provisions 

of the Tripartite Pact, This document, No. 2461-A, 

is a file of the newspaper "Asahi Shirabim" for April 

1944 ich I present for identification, while the 

text of TOJO' s speech published in the ne'?spaper 

"Asahl" on A p r i l 1 6， 1 9 4 4 , I tender in evidence, as 

I have said already. 

C L m OF THE COURTs Prosecution's document 

No. 2461^will receive exhibit No. 827 for identifica-

tion only. 

CTiereupon, the docunent above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 827 for identification。） 

THTH PRESIDSMT s The speech is admitted on 

the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE CnURT: And the excerpt there-

from, to-wit, prosecution's exhibit N o . 2461-A v;ill 

receive exhibit No. 827-A, 

(•""hereupon, the document above 

referred to was inerked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 827-A and Fas received in evidence.) 

G^teraL VASILinV! I quote a few excerpts 

from this speech; 

"They have nobillzed their full force and 

are now pressing the borders of the Axis territories"•一 
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in the East and the 切 t » Despite their efforts our 

strong and solid camp has not e ven shovm the slightest 

stir. The firm conviction of ultimate victory and 

the undefeatable positions of Japan, German:尸 and Italy-

have been all the more strengthened。 

"I am always paying my respects to the brave 

？nd courageous fight put up by the Germans and 

Italians in Europe; Through the complete 

cooperation given in war efforts by the countries 

and nations within the Greater East Asia Sphere, and 

the utilization of the abundant important resources 

for armaments, our position of ultimate victory is 

being strengthened day by day. Our Empire will 

maintain this position to the last, and resolutely 

deal blows to the enemies and thereby fight through 

this war to the end。" 

I continue to quote page 2 of the English 

text: 

"Even thoui?h battle fields may be apart, 

to the east and the west, the necessity arises for 

us, the Axis nations, to cooperate and concert nuch 

more closely and to increase our fight against our 

common enemies, America and Britain. 

"To meet this situation, Japan must carry 

on connections v.dth the countries of _CTerTnanyj_ Italy 
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and the other •axis nations in Europe on a closer 

basis, and smash all Anれo-American plots to segre-

gate Japan from the other Axis nations. ，7e will 

then be able to advance together towards the achieve-

ment of coiTunon objective and thus, Twlth the collabor-

ation of Europe and Asia, pain the ultimate victory,” 

The fourth document on the same issue is a 

congratulatory telegran sent by SFIGEHITSU on December 

11,194-4, to Ribbentrop and Kussolinl on the occasion 

of the third anniversary of signing the military 

alliance。 The telegram was published in the news-

paper "Nippon Times" on December 12,1944"。 I present 

this number of the "Nippon Times" in a file for 

identification and the text of the telegram in 

evidence, document No. 2528. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2528 will receive exhibit No。 828 for identifica-

tion only. 

('"hereupon, the document above 

referred to was narked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 828 for identification.) 

THE PRIlSIDSFTs The excerpt is admitted 

on the usual terms。 

CLERK OF THE COURT s And the excerpt there-' 

from bearing the same prosecution documentary number 一 
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will receive exhibit F o。卿 - A . 

C'Tiereupon, the document above 

referred to was narked prosecution's eyhlblt 

？To. 828-A and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote brief excerpts 

from the telegram containing the gist of the matter: 

"I also recall that on December 11,194-1, 

the three nations, concluding a new treaty, firmly 

pledged themselves to fipht out the conmon war until 

final victory and, simultaneously clarified again to 

the world their conrnon ideal of es + ablishing a new 

world order." 

I omit a few lines. 

"For three years since then, the Armed 

Forces of the three nations have achieved numerous 

brilliant war results in the various "battlefields of 

the east and west.', 

I continue to quote on page 2 2 

'い"’e firmly believe that after all Europe 

will be saved by Hitler and I'ussolini. 

"The war situation in Greater East Asia as 

everyone knows, has today entered the decisive stage. 

Confident of final victory both on the first line and 

on the home front, we are fiphting this decisive 7•？ar 

to a finish." 
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I omit a few lines. Quote at the bottom 

of p£ge 2s 

"Undoubtedly the decisive war is progressing 

in our favor. 

"”’e harbor unwavering faith in the fact that 

the struggle for justice will emerge victorious in 

the end. As lung as Japan, Germany, Italy and other 

Axis nations are solidly united, we need entertain no 

doubt as to the successful out cone of the war." 

Finally, on the same issue, namely, the 

tenacity in the realization of the aims of the con-

spiracy and the unity in aggressive war I present the 

fifth document. It i. the text of the defendant 

SHIGEMITSU's speech at the 86th Session of the 

Diet made on January 2 1 , 1 9 4 5 , that is to say, only 

three moiKhs prior to the unconditional capitulation 

of fascist Germany. 

I present for identification the symposium 

"Kanpo" dated January ？2,1945, in \7hich this speech 

can be found, document No. 590. An excerpt from this 

speech is tendered by me in evidence. 

CLERK OF THE COURT; Prosecution's dcemient 

No. 590 will receive exhibit No. 82? for identification 

only. 

("Tiereurion, the dncianent above 
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referred to ^vas marked prosecution's exhibit 

No。 829 for identification.) 

THE PRESIDENT s The excerpt is admitted on 

the usual terms。 

CLERK OF THE CnURT: And the excerpt there-

from bearing the same prosecution documentary numtier 

will receive exhibit Fo. 829-A, 

(•Tiereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked proseo-ution' s exhibit 

No. 829-A and ".'as received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASI：iSV: Quote on pape 3 of the 

English text: 

"The combination between our enpire and the 

other allied countries is beconing firmer and firmer; 

and v-'e are convinced of carrying out the current war 

successfully to the las七 together Yjith our allied 

countries at any cost. 

"エ am convinced that It is our most sacred 

mission to exert ourselves to carry out, together 

？•fltli our allied countries both in the East and '''est, 

the severe "battles destined to exploit the future of 

mankind in order to accomplish the common war aim of 

making clear International justice In the war of ‘ •‘-

self-existence and self-defense." 

"*ith this I conclude the presentation of 
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evidence. Further evidence on the question of 

planning and preparing the attack on the Soviet Union 

by Japan in the course of Soviet-German war will be 

offered by ny colleagu?^, Colonel RosentDlii;, 

TH'^ PR^SIDSNTs Colonel Rosenblit, 

COLONEL ROS'^IBLIT; Beginning now on the 

8th of October of the ciarrent year the Tribunal ruled 

thgt prosecution docunfint Î ô。 2367, which is an ex-

cerpt from the defendant A R m ' s talk with ISHI^^ATA, 

reported in the "Kokumin Shimbim, “ be accepted in 

evidence conditionally and the scope of the transla-

tion or the translated portion be increased on the 

request of defense counsel so that the Court m:ghfc 

ascertain xs^hose rords were quoted by us, whereupon 

the excerpt tos given exhibit No. 667-A。 ”’e have the 

full text of the talk which v-as published in the 

"Kokumln Shinbun" of August 1 4 , 1 9 4 1 , translated -

and served on the Court and the defense counsel. 

As to the Japanese oopy, the f'all text of it had been 

distributed befoi^iiour presentation cf tha case. 

IJow it is clear frcin the full text of uhe transla-

tion that the passings qiic'-ed. bj us and recorded on 

pages 7309 arid 7310 of the Ciouでt report is ARAKI ‘ s 

cnm speech。 I respectfully ask the Tribunal to rule 

that the a"bove-nentioned exhibit Mo. 667-A be 
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•unconditionally accepted. 

THE PRESIDENT: The condition has been met. 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT; NOW エ enter upon the 

presentation of evidence concerning the plans of 

attack on the U.S.S.R. which were being worked out 

by the Japanese Army General Staff during the Soviet-

C-era an war. 

I respectfully bring to the memory of the 

Tribunal prosecution document No. 1652, exhibit No, 

779, presented "by my colleague in prosecution, 

General Vaslliev, containing the resolution of the 

conference in the presence of the Smperor, July 2, 

1941. It was decided at that conference to go on 

with the preparations for war against the Soviet 

Union and to wait for a suitable moment to solve 

by force of arms Japan's northern problems, to-wit, 

her claims upon the territories of the Soviet Union. 

I do not believe it is necessary to quote 

the said document again. 

I shall submit evidence to the Tribunal 

which show how the Japanese General Staff 

carried out the decisions of that Conference of the 

2d of July, 1941. ‘ 

Now I submit to the Tribunal as evidence a 

photostatic copy of the telegram sent by Ott, GeraaiL 
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Ambassador in Japan, and Kretschraar す German iitsry— 

Attache In Japan, July 2 5 , 1 9 4 1 , No. 1355, to 

Reichsminlster for Foreign Affairs, and concurrently 

to the higher command, OK'f, and to the A m y General 

Staff, OKH, prosecution document No, 4052, 

THIH PRESIDENT： Admitted on the usual terras. 

CLERIC OF THE COURTs Prosecution's document 

No. 4052 will receive exhibit No. 83O. 

("Tiereupon, the document above 

referred to マ!as narked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 830 end 77as received in evidence,) 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT: In this telegram ftt 

and Kietsdinar state their impression of the progress 

of the mobilization proclaimed bv the Japanese after 

Germany's attack on the Uふ S . R。 This telegram will 

prove that this moblli^iatioii vms carriod out for the 

purpose of -̂ 'ar against the U.S.S.R. I quote the 

full text of the telegram: 

" 1 ) T h e draft of reserves slowly beginning 

in Japan and Ilanchukuo on 10 July and the following 

days, suddenly reached a large and no lor?er conceal— 

able extent, e s p e c - l a l l y in the 丄st, '上,7"c:i, 12th 

and 16th division5 and continued until today in 

decreased strength. Until the middle of Aupust 

supposedly about 900,000 (nine hundred thousand) 
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reservists are to be drafted, that Is the 24 to 4-5 

year olds； among' the eldest, however, only 

specialists like drivers, technicians, people able 

to speak Russian, etc. After t h a t , another 500,000 

(five hundred thousand) reservists, are supposedly 

availeblG. 

"2) Together with the drafting of the 

resGrvlsts on 10 July /orders cane for/ a draft of 

horses, notor vehicles, etc., and a little later, 

instructions to firms to provide nllitary goods of 

constunption, like foodstuffs, candles, and others 

till the end of September at the latest。 

"3) On 1 1 ( 1 2 ) July limitation of the 

use of forolgn languages in the teletype pnd t ele-

phone communications. In addition, starting 20 July 

mail censorship on foreigners ‘letters, also，',ithin 

Japan. 

"4) Since 12 July prohibiting of travel by 

railway， ship, and airplane for foreigners on gradually 

all along distance linos within Japan and to Korea, 

China, Formosa. Jp.penese are also prohibited from 

entering Sachalin。 Japeinese students have to remain 

in t he vicinity of their residence. 

"5) Since about 10 July transporting of 

troops, bfiFinning xvith trnnps ̂  t.pnhnini.nn 
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troops and artillery of the l6th and 1st division 

ond trensport of reservists froni Japan. Goal: Seishin 

and a shin for troops ？nd reservists, Tientsin and 

Shanghai only for reservists. 

”6) Since the middle of July preparation 

in Iてanchiiria for billeting and the arrival of troop 

trr-nsports. In addition increased transport of mil-

itary goods, which inr.y be interpreted as the establish-

ing of supply bases.“ 

Further on in this telegram Ott pnd Kretsch-

mar give their considerations as to the Japanese 

military plans and the tine of JapF.n' s attack on the 

Soviet Union. I continue quoting the telegram: 

"7) My impression: 

"(a) Besides the increase of Japanese troops 

in Ifenchuria and probably F:1SO in North China, a nev; 

a m y froup is being formed in Korea. 

"(b) According to conversations xvlth officers 

of the General Staff, besides the Japanese forces In 

l-Ianchuria and Korea apparently also parts of the 

North Chine： Aray are to be used for action ？gainst 

the Soviet Union, No clarity regarding the Japanese 

operations plan. But it is Tiro'bEble that it vill not 

be lirited only to an attack on the Vladivostok area 

rjid in a northerly direction, but will also 
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simultaneously st&rt in the direction of Lake 

Baikal, along the Manchurian Railroad, through Chita, 

and froH the area of Kalgan through Outer I'ongolia. 

"(c) Time of start /of operations/ unkno丽. 

One feet which might ber.r this out is thpt, in my 

opinion, the deplojnnent of troops "will te.ke until 

rbout the middle of ihipust, and that General OKAIIOTO 

several times mentioned in his conversations that 

Japan would only start Fhen the German units had 

rec-ched. the Volga. 

"(Signed) Kretsctaiar, Ott." 

Evidence has been produced to the Tribunal 

that the jRp?;nese Army General Staff destroyed oper-

ation plrjis and other secret documents in August 

194-5. I refer to the testimony given by Lieutenant 一 

General K A 細 E , Torashiro, former Deputy Chief of the 

J?pp,nese Army General Staff, which is to be found on 

pages 7677 ？̂.nd 7678 of the records of the Court. 

In his testimony K A ' W E acknovTledged the 

fact th?t those secret docu.raents had been destroyed 

by the department and section chiefs of the Army 

General Staff during the period from Aupust 13,194-5, 

to the date Ti/hen the order of the Allied Pov/ers vjas 

received, by T/hich order destroying documents v;e.s 

prohibited. 
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THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Smith. 

MR. SMITH: If your Honor please, I objest 

to the prosecutor recapitulating testimony given by a 

witness and stating what it proved. 

THE PRESIDENT: He is tying in certain 

evidence v.iiich is desirable. 

COLONEL ROSENBLITs To corroborate KLAJ-'ABE's 

testimony I offer in evidence a certificate of MIYAMA, 

Yozo, Chief of correspondence section, 1st Demobiliza-

tion Bureau of Angus t 7 , 1 9 ^ 6 . It is clear from 

KftWiSETCifS -testimony that operation plans of Japan as 

well as other secret documents, pertaining to preparing 

war against the U.S.S,R. cannot be submitted as they 

are not in the possession of the 1st Demobilization 

Bureau, prosecution document No, 2595-A, 

THE P R E S I B M T : Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERIC OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2595-A will receive exhibit No. 83I. 

("hereupon, the document above 

referred ^to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 831 and was received in evidence.) 
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COLONEL ROSENBLIT: I quote the full text of 

the certificate. 

"CERTIFICATE 

"Aug.7 ,194-6. 

"The undersigned does hereby certify that 

it is impossible to submit you the following' docu-

ments, as they are not in our possession now. 

"1.) All the files of 1st and 2nd Depart-

ments of Japanese General Staff bearing upon the plan-

ning of war against the USSR. (Otsu and Kan-Toku-

En Plans). 

"2,) The correspondence of the General 

Staff and the War Ministry of Japan with the Head-

quarters of Kwantung and Korean Armies on the ques-

ts. on of military preparation of Japan for a war 

against the Soviet Union. 

"Yozo MIYAMA." 

"Chief of Correspondence Section, 

1st Demobilization Bureau.“ 

Therefore we cannot present in evidence to the 

Tribunal the original plans of war. However, by a 

series of affidavits and other evidence, we shall first 

of all prove that in the Summer of 1941 the Japanese 

Army General Staff elaborated a special plan of a 

speedy preparation for war against the U.S.S.R. under 
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the cipher "Kan-Toku-En", and secondly: we shall 

establish the contents of that plan. 

I quote in evidence an excerpt from the 

affidavit of Lieutenant-General MIYAKE, Matsuhara 

of February 2 2 , 1 9 4 6 which has been tendered to the 

Court (Prosecution document N o . 1950, Exhibit No. 699)• 

Quote from page 8 of the English text: 

"Answer: A document was delivered from the 

KWANTITTJG ARI-IY Headquarters to the CGntral Headquarters 

office of the KYOWA-KAI late in 1941: on the cover 

of the document there were written the xvords: "KAF-

TOKU-EN". 

"Answer: It was stated in this document that 

300,000 laborers for military construction were de-

manded by the m N T U H G APMY Headquarters from the 

IIANCHIIKUO Government." 

Now I quote in evidence an excerpt from the 

affidavit of I!ajor-General A^'IIOTSA, Sh-in of February 

2 2 , 1 9 4 6 which has already been tendered to the Tri-

bunal (Prosecution document No. 1983 Exhibit No.ヮ43)• 

Quote from the middle of page 6: 

"Question: What do you know concerning the plan 

of Blan-toku-en (A special grand maneuver of the Kwan-

tunr Army)？ 

"Answer: From the conversations with Colonel 
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Saburo HAYASHI, Chief of the Russian Section of the 

Second Department in the General Staff and other offi-

cers, エlearned that the plan of the Kan-toku-en was 

quickly drawn up after the start of attack on the 

Soviet Union by Germany in 1941 and its contents 

were the plan of preparation of military operations 

for .し:le purpose of taking military aggression against 

the Soviet Union by Japan. And in connection with my 

duties I was personally aware of some measures with 

regard to the *Kan-Toku-En* plan." 

I quote further from the bottom of page 7: 

"Question: Did you see any documents stamped 

•Kan-toku-en'？ 

"Answer: Yes, in 1943 I saw such documents con-

cerning a financial account of the expenditure which 

was paid out of the 'an-toku-en budget." 

I quote in evidence an excerpt from the 

affidavit of the Japanese TAKABE, Rokuzo, former 

Chief of the General Affairs Department of the Manchou-

kuo Government，• of March 2 6 , 1 9 4 6 (Prosecution document 

No. 2239 Exhibit No. 670). We have already presented 

this affidavit. This excerpt will prove that the 

"Kan-Toku-En", the literal translation of which is 

"Special M&noeuvres of the Kwantuiig Army" was actually 

a ciphered plan of strengthening the Kwantunf Army 
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for the purpose of attacking the US SI：. 

I quote an excerpt from page 3 of the 

English text: 

"Question: What do you know about the measures 

by the 'Kwantung Special Manoeuvre,' the plan called 

^Kaii-Toku-En'? 

"Answer: The 'Kwantung Special Manoeuvre‘ was 

•j. name for keeping secret the actions of the Kwant.iing 

Army. Actually the Kwantung Army was rein-forced by 

this plan. According to this plan there were orders 

concerning the delivery of food and other things, 

supplying laborers, and transportation of poods. 

"Question; When and by whom were you made to 

know the existence of the Tantokuen'? 

"Answer; I heard atout it at the beginning of 

July SHOWA 16 (1941) from K U K C W A , Chief of the 

Fourth Section of the Kwantimg Army Headquarters, 

and also from UKEZIJ, Commander of the Kwantung Army. 

"Question: What kind of concrete things did 

UI3-ZU say concerning the 'Kantokuen' plan? 

"Answer: During his .talk xvith me, TJMrzU told 

rae about the increasetnent of the troops of the Kwan-

tung Army and demanded the delivery of food for these 

troops. 

"Question: Under you.r comaand what tneasii.res 
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should be taken by the Manehurlan Government regarding 

the 'Kantokuen' plan? 

"Answer: First of all, the delivery of goods 

necessary for the reinforced troops, transportation 

of these goods. the mobilization of laborers, and 

anything else necessary for the Army, 

"Question： When were the measures of the Man-

churian Government according to the丨Kantokueniplan 

to be realized? 

"Answer: Its measures were to be realised with-

in six months.“ 

We are able to confirm the existence of the 

"Kan--Toku-En" plan still in another way. 

We present to the Court as evidence, a photo-

static copy of the directive of the Kwantim/?： Army Head-

quarters of September 16, 1941, signed by the Command-

ing General of the Kwantimg Army, the now Defendant 

miEZU, Yoshijlro, that the army interpreters for the 

Kwantujig Army be given additional education (Prose-

cution Document No. 1973レ 

We present this directive so that the Tri-

bimal may have a docソr.entary evidence that in Sept-

ember 1.941 there really existed the "Kan-Toku-En" plan: 

and secondly that in order to carry out the "Kan-Toku-

En" plan, intensive training： of Russian Interpreters 

was necessary. 
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THE PRESIDENT: Ifeior Bl?keney. 

MR. ELAKENEY: I should iust like to point 

cut to the Tribunrl thrt this is pnother document 

emrnrting from the Red i.rmy Chief Milltpry Prosecution 

Deprrtnent in Moscor-, rnd, therefore, I ssume would 

be rdmitted, if rt rll, conditionally rs in the prr.t, 

1.®. GOLUNSKY: If the Tribnnrl plersc, 

yesterdry nipht vie received from Moscov rn rnsrer to 

our inav.iry rbcut this docuncnt, rr-d the certifierte 

containing the inform?tion recc-iver' hrs -be-en dis-

tributed todry. 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, the condition strnds 

until the certificrte Is tendered in evidence Irter. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Propccutlon document 

N o . 1973 v'lll receive exhibit No. P32. 

C''hcre-upon, the rbove-mentioned 

document v了？ s nrrked pro.secution's exhibit 

N o . 832 rnd received in evidence.) 

COLONEL R O S M B L I T :エ emote the full text of 

the document signed "by Generrl U15EZU. 

"The students of foreign Irng-urge schools 

in Jrprn rnd Hrrbin College (Hrrbin C-Fkiiin) v'ho hrvc 

been cnployed ？s Army interpreters on Russirn Irnp-

UFge since the opening of the "Krn-toku-en" should 

be given supplericntrry ed"ucrt.ion, in rccordrnce with 
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the ^Outline of Supplementary Education for Kwangtung 

Army Interpreters ‘, as explainsd 5.n th^ separate book-

let. 

" S e p t . 1 6 , 1 9 4 1 

”Coirnnander, Ktsntamg- Army UMEZU, Yoshij ir o.'' 

Fow it remains for us to present svldence 

as regards the contents of the 'Ifen-Toku-Tiin ‘ plan. 

I shall now deal with the cfficiavit of ？e'o-

ruary 2 1 , 1 9 4 6 of Lj.eutenant-C-enera 1 TOMIITAGA, Keojl 

former Chief of the Opsrstion Department of tho Army 

General Staff, who was latar on appointed Vice-War 

minlstsr. This affidavit has already been submitted 

to the Tribunal and partly quotsd by Colonel Ivsnov 

(Prosecution document N o . 1934 Sxhiioit N o . 705) 

ii I quote in evidance an excerpt from the afore-

said affidavit, pars 6 of the Lnslish text: 

“The Kan-Toku-En plan wss elaborated in the 

；-niddle of 1 9 4 1 , a s \7ar broke out bet^vssn the U.S.S»R, 

and G-ernany. The vj&r situation was not favorable for 

the Red P.rmj p-nd el. pec ted ths t the U.S.S. R . •would 

transfer her troops from ths Soviet Par rsst to the 

westsrn front. On account； of this, wa supposed that 

we could easi?し;7 occupy the Far Ssst," 

I skip one line and c;uote further: 

'''The 'ICan-Toku-3n ‘っIan was based upon ths 
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operation plan of 七 h e Army Gsnorp.l Strff drawn out 

by ine in 1940. As I have mentioned before, according 

to tiie former plan, the attacks on all fronts were 

sv.pposed to bs brought about in turn with rath.sr long 

interval 3 tiet\veer th.emj but according to the 'ICan-

Tolcu-En ‘ plan all the blows were to be dealt simul— 

taneously,“ 

T0!.!1IIAGA then s^cplains the defendant TO JO, 

point of viev; concerning the 'Kan-.To':u-En ‘ Hideki 

plan, 

text ； 

I quote further from page 7 of the English 

"Ans^ror. In 1941, TO JO sale!, to rae in a 

conversation: 'The ：••”.3ssnt time is very suitable 

for an aggression against the U.S.S.R. because 

we can carry on war ',7ith.oui： encou.nt-sring any strong 

resist£inc3 from the Sovist Ar.ny, ‘ He furtlior said, 

'The Japanese Array -mov.IC. ^ain a forest prestige by 

attaci-lng the TJ.S.S.？i. at a time v.'hsn it is ready 

to fall to the ground, like a ripe psrsiirjraon. ‘ TOJO 

also said that it wag necessary to increase the num-

ber of present iinits in ？.fenchu.ris, as s way of prompt 

mobilisation of the Kwantung Array, 

"C^uestlon. Do jow confirm that TOJO had a 

strong intention of oggreasion against the U.S.S.R, 

at that time? 
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''Answer. Y e s , I do." 

The question oJT streng.tlienins the E?了an七ting 

Army according to ths 'Kan-Toku-En ‘ plan is like^^ise 

dlsclossd 5.n a series of othar affidavits which I 

3 lis 11 pro sent 1g tor. 

lly collGaguo, Colonel Ivニ.noVj has already 

proscntcd to the Co-art os cvidcnco, a report of tlio 

Bed Array Gen err 1 Staff concornins t ho 5. n cross o in 

strcn-th of the Kwantiuig Army siid the Japanese A m y , 

in gsnei'al, for the porioci fron 1931 through 1945, 

(ProsGCution documont No. 223?, Exhibit No. 706). 

If tho Tribune 1 ploaso エ shall onco raore 

refer to 七 b i s ciocijiiisnt and call it to the Tribunal's 

attention th^t loy Jontisrj'-1,1942, the strength of 

tho Kv/antung Army had rsached, 1,10Q000 m e n , 

and at tho same time tho nv,?nbor of tanks in the 

Kwantiing Army was dou'talcd, "whilst the rruraoGr of sir-

planoa had even 七 r i p ] . 、 ご I n comparison to those of 

1937. 

•Tc offer in &vidonca the affidavit of Major 

!..:ATS.rUR\ , Kustio, ‘ of May 1 8 , 1 9 4 6 , who wos Chief of 
I 

tho Glpl.oring Sorvico of the Jo panose f orcos in エ rmer 

Mongolia, end Intor wrs asfiignad the sam3 position in 

the Kwantung A m y . (Prosocution dociimcint No. 2153), 

This c'oc-aracrit "/ill shoT? that in ths so mo period tho 
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THE PRESIDENT: Major Blakeney. 

mi, BLAKENEY: If the Tribunal t)lease,エ wish 

to call attention to at least one objectionable 

question and answer in this affidavit, which I submit 

should be removed froir consideration of the Tribunal. 

I refer particularly to the top of page 3. The 

affidavit has very few questions quoted verbatim, 

but the entire affidavit gives evidence of having been 

the result of leading questions. And at the top of 

page 3 we see a perfect example of a question which 

is leading and which also assumes facts which have 

not been disclosed earlier by the witness. There-

fore, エ object to that question and answer and request 

thct they be disregarded, 

TEE PRESIDENT: The objection is overruled. 

Mr. McManus. 

MR. McIIANUS: May I address the Court? 

THE PRESIDENT: I had called on you to do 

so. You are not using your earphones, and you are 

making me repeat things unnecessarily, which I 

resent. 

M R . McMANUS: If your Honor please, this 

might not be the propitious time, but in view of 

the fact that I am sonewhat confused, I think if 

the Court will grant me that privilege of making 
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my statement concerning my client,エ should like to 

call the attention of the Court to make a simple 

statement that in exhibit 787 the name of ARAKI is 

not the accused in the d o c k .エ make that statement 

for the simple reason that several other counselors 

made that statement, and my silence might have 

militated against m e . I would just like that noted 

in the record. I am sorry that エ am intermptlng 

the proceedings at this time, but I would like it 

noted in the record. 

THE PRESIDENT: Colonel Eosenblit. 

COLONEL EOSENBLIT: I shall quote excerpts 

from the aforesaid affidavit which will, shovf how the 

Japanese Cominand -was preparing for a major v;ar against 

the U . S . S . R . in the fall of 194-1. 

Quote from page 3 of the English text: 

"After the beginning of the German-Soviet 

W a r , about June 23-24, 19^1, Gen. OKAliURA, Commander 

of the North China Area Army, called by cipher 

telegram Lieut.-Gen. AMAKUSU， Commander of the Mon-

golia Stationary Army, and Col. KABUF.AGI Masataka, 

senior staff officer in charge of military operations, 

to the North China Area Army Headquarters in Peking. 

The above two left for Peking about June 2 4 , 1 9 4 1 , 

"On returning from Peking, about July 5,194-1. 
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Lieut.-Gen. AMAKASU Tataro called all commanders of 

the forces under his command for an assembly. It 

appeared that directives concerning preparations of 

war against the Soviet Union were given at this 

meeting. Regarding the military operations against 

the Soviet Union, Japanese troops In Inner Mongolia 

had to act in concert with the Kwantung Army," 

A few lines further, on page 3， the same 

document reads as follows: 

"At tUe saae- time, the Commander of the 

26th Division who had been In charge of suppressing 

Chinese guerilla army received orders to prepare for 

military operations against Outer Mongolia in the 

Felsuantaiku desert district." ‘ 

Is is clear from Major MATSUURA's testimony, 

the matters were not limited only to conferences and 

directives, soon actual deeds followed. 

I further quote the same d o c m e n t from page 3 

"Early in Sept./ 1941, Lieut.-Col. KOTANI, 

General Staff Officer arrived by airplane from the 

Kwantung Army Headquarters 

I skip a few lines and quote further: 

"Since June, 1941, the discharge from 

military service upon expiration of the term was 

suspended, and the increase of troops was enforced by 
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newly conscripted strength. For example, over 

5,000 appear to have arrived between June and Dec., 

1941." 

I shall now quote MATSUUKA's report of a 

conversation with Captain NANI, regarding the future 

attack on the U , S . S . R . 

At that time MATSUUHA was also a captain. 

The relevancy of the talk of the two Japanese cap-

tains is doubtless because, taking into account all 

evidence together, these talks shov; that the plans 

elaborated in the upper strata, penetrated into the 

core of the Army and were the actual themes of con-

versations inciting the Army to prepare for a n attack 

on the U . S . S . E . 

I further quote the affidavit of MATSUURA 

from p . 4: 

"I cannot help but say that the problem of 

an offensive against the Soviet Far East was openly-

discussed by Japanese officers. Diiring a conversa-

tion with Captain NANI,Ichiro, an officer attached 

to the Army Intelligence Section, he stated that the 

offensive of the Japanese army against Outer Mon-

golia was to be directed against Ulanbator-Zabaikalye, 

the object which lay in making military transporta-

tion to the Far East difficult by cutting off the 
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Trans-Siberian Railroad." 

In order to follow the logical development 

of my presenting the case I need not quote from this 

affidavit for the time being, and shall return to it 

later on. 

As is clear from the evidence tendered by 

my colleague General Vasillev and myself, the 

Japanese attack against the U . S . S . R . was first 

fixed at August or September, 194-1, 
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THE PRESIDENT: Major Blakeney. 

M R . BLAKENEY; At this time, if the Court 

please, we should like to request information of the 

prosecution as to the status and location of this wit-

ness, and should like to make the usual request for a 

direction that he he brought and made available for 

cross-examination. 

(Whereupon, Colonel Rosenblit made a state-

• ment in the Russian language,) 

RUSSIAN INTERPRETER; The first part of the 

statement was not heard, 

MR. GOLUNSKYs If the Tribunal please, we 

have sent a telegram asking for information about all 

the Japanese witnesses whose afficavits have been 

produced here. As soon as we get the information we 

will submit it to the Tribunal. 

THE PRESIDENT: The application for production 

of the witness here will be considered. 

Colonel Rosenblit. 

COLOITSL ROSENBLIT: As is clear from materials 

of Military Games of the Institute of Total War 

presented by us, prosecution document No, 1622, exhi-

bit No. 686-A, there are Indications in those materials 

that the Japanese attack on the U.S.S.R. was postponed 

from the summer of 194-1 to July-August 194*2• 
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If the Tribunal please,ェ shall call for direct 

examination, the ifitness, former Lieutenant Colonel of 

the Kwantung Army SEJIMA, Ruizo, who, in 1940 through 

1944, worked in the Operaセ;Ions Department of the 

Japanese Army General Staff, 

THE FRE3IDENT: Major Blakeney. 

MR. BLAKENEY: While we are 'raiting, may エ 

point out that through inadvertence the last document 

was not aomitted and given an exhibit nuir.ber, 

THE PRESIDENT; I inquired as to that. It 

was really admitted。 An objection was dealt with. 

The only objection raised to it was 己 e a l t v;ith, and 

the number was then called. ":e treat that as admission. 

CLERK OF THE COURT； Prosecution's document 

No. 2153 was given exhibit No. 833. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

Ho. 833， and was received in evidence.) 
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R U I 2 0 S E J I M A , called as a witness on 

behalf of the prosecution, being first duly 

sworn, testified through Japanese interpreters 

as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

3Y COLONSL R0SEN3LIT; 

Q Mr. Witness, tell to the Court your name ana 

your first name. 

A 3SJIMA, Ruizo. 

Q ""hat is your age? 

A Thirty-four. 

Q What was your position in the Kwantung Army 

before the surrender? 

A Staff officer, First Section, Kwantung Army. 

Q Did you or did ::oti not work in the Operations 

department of the Army General Staff? 

A Y e s . ‘ 

Q You are a. war prisoner of chs Soviet Army 

at present? You are being shewn prosecution document 

No. 2673, which is v/ritten in the Japanese language. 

This is your affidavit of September 27,194-6, Isn't 

it? Look through this document. Did you or did you 

not write it by your cnm hand? 

A Yes, I wrote it with my own hand. Yes, this 

was OTitten by me. 
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I； The signature which appears on all the pages 

of the affidavit is your signature, isn't it? 

A Y e s . 

Q Are the contents of this affidavit true to 

fact? 

A Yes. 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT: I produce in evidence 

prosecution document No. 2673, which is an affidavit 

of the witness SEJIBiiA, Ruizo, of September 2 7 , 1 9 4 6 , 

in the Japanese l3ngUc._^;e. 

THE PRESIDENT s Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2673 will receive exhibit N o . 834。 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 834， and was received in evidence.) 

THE PRESIDENT: Do you propose to read all 

this? 

Y/e will recess for fifteen minutes. 

(Whereupon, at 1045， a recess was 

taken until 1100, after which the proceedings 

were resumed as follows:) 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Fsr Fast is now resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Colonel R o s e n b l i t . . 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT: If the Tribunal please, 

I shell produce in evidence prosecution document 

No. 2673, the full text of the affidrvlt. 

(Reading) 

"I, S E J I M 5 Ryuzo, ex-Lie\aten?nt-Colonel 

of the Japrnese Army, born in 1911 strte FS follows： 

"I grrdupted from the Militr.ry Acrdemy in 

1932 end from the Militrry College in 1938. In Jrni^rry 

194-0 エ wrs cttrched to the Army Generrl Stcff Office; 

then in December 194-1,I wr.s rppointed member of the 

1st Department (Militrry Operations Department) of 

the Army General Strff Office, where,I pcturlly worked 

till August 1944, 19th year of Showa. 

"I trke ooth end testify as follows to セhe 

frets I hr.d been able to learn in the execution of 

my duties while working ？.dth the Army Generrl Steff 

Office from Jcnu?ry 1940 to August 1944, 

"I. During this period I worked continuously 

in Section ェ ェ ハ D A I N I K A ' / 1st Department of the Army 

Generr.l Steff Office. This section, called the Militrry 

Oper£?.tions Section, took chrrge of duties regrrding 

pirns for militrry operations. From Janiir.ry 1940 to 
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December 1 9 4 1 , I attended to metters of general business 

vjhich included safe-keeping of secret documents rnd 

incineration of documents for which the custody period 

had expired. During the •period thrt I e. member 

of Section II, I hr.d charge of matters regarding employ-

inent of military forces, end during the Ir.tter part, 

エ &lso pe.rticipated in the drr.wing up of operrtionrl 

plens, some of which I drew up myself. 

"In fbout spring of 1 9 4 1 , I incinerrted the 

documents concerning the plans for t'ne 1939 militrry 

operr.tions which hf.d been kept in the document spfe. 

In the Army General Steff Office, the -oeriod of 

custody for operationr.l pirns s generally two 

yerrs. Before incinerGting "these documents I took 

F. glrnce through them rnd fo-urid rmong them the pirns 

for the 1939 operrtions rgrinst the TJ。S。SoR, It wrs 

thus thct I lerrned ebout these plr.ns rnd c m still 

recollect their outline, 

"According to this pirn, the chief strrtepiCc1 

scheme of Jppr.n' s Supreme Commr.nd, in cr.se of r. Russo— 

Jc.prnesG vvr, wrs to concentrrte our mrin farces in 

Eastern I'lrnch-urin rnd trke the offensive rgrinst Fr.r 

Erst Russir, In this crsc, the K w c n t m g Army wrs to 

occupy VOROSHIVOW, V L A D I V O S T O K ,ェ丽 rnd then KHABA-

ROVSK, BLAGOVESHCHENSK rnd KUIBYSHEVSKA-, 
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"After エ"became e. member of Section 1 1 , 1 s t 

Deprrtment of the Army Generrl Strff Office, I wrs 

rble to lerrn in fr.r more detril the contents of the 

operrtionrl r)lans ps my duties v/ere relr.ted to the 

employment of militrry forces. It wrs beer/use I 

hrd to consider operrtionrl pirns for the vr.rious 

arer.s conccrned, in the employment of militr.ry forces. 

Accordingly, I have been rble to lerrn the pirns for 

operations rgrinst Rtis .'.a for the yer.rs 19-^1 rnd 194-2. 

‘ "According to the operrtionrl pirn for the 

yerr 1941 the Kwrntung： Army wr s to concentrrte its 

mrin forces in the direction of the Iferitime Provinces, 

e pert of its forcc-s in the direction of BLAGOVESHCHENSK 

rnd KUIEYSHEVSKA, rnd m o t h e r pr.rt in the neighbourhood 

of HAILAR while the reserve wrs to be concentrrted 

in HARBIN in tho tvent of r Russo-Jcpr.nese w r r . The 

offensive wrs to be tr.kc.n from the SUI-RE!J-IIO district 

tov:rrds rnd from the HE I-HO district towards the 

BLAGOVESHCHENSK rnd KUIBYSHENSKA districts. Pirns 

were mr.de for the forces in the neighbo-urhood of 

HAILAR to trke r. defensive position in order to protect 

offensive operr.tions in other rrers. The rim of the 

offensive operations In the M&ritime Provinces wr.s to 

occupy thrt r.rer., while- the offensive in the BLAGOVE-

SHCHENSK rnd KUIBYSHEUSKA districts wr.s mernt to cut 

I 
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the rr.ilwry, to mrke reinforcement rnd supply from 

the west impossible. 

"In the first phr.se of the wr.r, they expected 

to occ-upy VOROSHILOV, VLADIVOSTOK, BLAGOVESHCHENSK, 

IMAH, KUIBISHEVSKA rnd RUICHLOVO, while in the second 

phase, they expected PS frr ？s the siturtion permitted, 

to occupy North SAKHAI:.K, Port PETB.OPAVIOVSK of 

K A M C H A m , NIKOLAYEVSK of the Amur River, KOMSOMOLSK 

end SOVGAVAN. 

"Beside the Army‘ s plr.n of operr.tion worked 

out r,t the Army Generrl Sti.ff Office, there were r.s 

e. part of the operrtional pirns, the pirns for joint 

operrtions to be cr.rried ont in close cooperation 

hy the Ariny rnd Hrvy together. Out of these pirns, 

those concerning Nrvrl operrtions ？rere worked out 

rt the Nf.vpI Generrl Strff Office rnd forvv-rdec^ to 

the Array Generrl Str.ff Office- where they were in-

serted r.s prrt of the operrticnrl p l o n s .” 
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"Accordingly, I looked through some of the 

plans for Naval operations also。 For instance, the 

Naval operations for 1941 had the three following ob-

jects; 

“ ( 1 ) t o protect the landings on Port PE» 

TR0PAVI073K of KAMCHATKA and NORTH SAKHALIN; 

“(2) to stt£ck the Eussian '^acific Fleet 

and blockade VLADIVOSTOK from the ses front. 

"(3) to DPotect the coramv.nication line con-

necting Jaoan Proner, Korea and Manchuria by guarding 

the TSUSHIMA channel. 

"In 1942, the 1st Department of the Army 

General Staff Office hed worked out a new plan for 

operations against tl 3 U.S.S.R., which w a s adhered to 

until the spring of 1944. Having seen this plan many 

times5 I can still recollect its outline. 

"Like all the arevious operational lolans, 

this plan for the year 1942 was an offensive plan and 

the operation was scheduled to commence with a sur-

prise attack. 

"According to the above plan, about thirty 

divisions were scheduleri to be concentrated in MANCHURIA 

with the main force in Eastern MANCHURIA and concentra-

tions of some of the forces in the S U N - m and HAILAR 

districts repsectively. The First Front which was to 
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take the offensive against VOROSKILOV consisted of 

the 2nd, 3 r d , 5th end 20th armies. The forces of the 

fcur "armies were to advance in parallel so that they 

could fight a decisive battle in the vicirity of 

VOROSHTLOV. The 2r/l Front ccrsisted of the 4th and 

8th armies and its object was to take the offensive 

in the SVOBODNI and ICJIBYSffiVSKA districts to anni-

hilate the Russian, forces in those areas, and cut 

the railway. Diversional operstions were scheduled 

to be imdertaken by the 6th Army in the Western areas. 

I n the first, phase cf the war, the Jananese Army was 

scheduled to occupy the Russian cities in the Mari-

time Province and BLAGOVESHCHENSK, SVOBODNI and 

KITBYSEEVSKA. The forces in HOKKAIDO were to occupy 

North SAKHALIN, a'』a division in Japan kroner vias to 

occupy Port PETROPAVLCYSK of KAMCHATKA. 

"The plans for Navsl oner?tions for the year 

1942 vras in general the ssme as that of 1941, The 

operational Dlans against the T J . S . S . F ! . for 194-3 also 

followed the above plans for 1942. 

"It had never been explained to me whether 

there was to be a war against Russia or net. All I 

kn?>w were the military natters concerning operational 

plans as an officer of the 1st Department of the Army 

General Stsff Office, and I have no knowledge concerning 
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political relations. 

"II. In about the summer of I94-I5 after the 

German attack on Russia, I came to learn the following 

facts in connection with the reinforcement of the 

Kwantung Army. 

"A. In about the summer of 1 9 4 1 , I sew, 

at the 1st Deoart'-^ient of the A m y Genersl Sta^'f Office, 

the text of the Imperial Commend (handwritten) for 

despatching two new divisions to the Kwantung /rmy, 

"B. In about tbe sum'^ner of 1 9 4 1 , I sav.', at 

the 1st Department of thn Arm 3'' General 'Staff Office, a 

military order (printed) reorgsnizetion in connection 

with the fifteen divisions of the Kv/antung Army on a 

SGrii-war-time besis, v.'hich was distributed to eech sec-

tion of thG department, 

"C. Through the documents T saw at the Army 

General Staff Office, in other words, through the tele-

grams reporting the progress of mobilizstlon in all 

districts, I knew that a mobilization wss underway in 

Japan in the simmer of 1Q41 to reinfcrce the Kwantung 

Army. The number of mohi]ized wen was about 300,000, 

and I Cciae to lef.rn about it tbroufrh calculation of 

the strength of the Kwantung Army in 1942。 

"The mobilization vas secretly ccrricd out, 
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and the usual elabopste send-offs for the conscriDts 

were prohibited. In Tokyo5 I often s?iW mobilized troops 

passing through or leaving frtm the stctions in つ：ro— 

found silence. 

"The PbovG wcs written by my own hrnd and 

contents ere true. 

”(signed) Sejima, Ryuzo" 

the 
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The affidcvit is signed by the witness 

SEJIfelA, Ruizo, on the 27th of September, 1946, rnd the 

witness wc:s duly sworn in the presence of United States 

Army C rptain Rolond Schwarts rnd Second Lieutenant 

Hattori. 

The witness is now at the disposal of defense 

counsel for cross-examinrtlon. 

THE PRESIDENT: D r . KIYOSF. 

CROSS-IXAIIBIATION 

BY D R . KIYOSE: 

Q In the affidavit ；just rerd, fifth pcge of 

the Jrpanose text, fourth pnge of the English text, 

second parngrrph, the following words nre found: 

"It hrd never been explcined to me wheth r there wrs 

to be E wcr pgfiinst Russia or not.，' N o w , I osk you, 

M r . sVitness, Is this not c plan formulrted regularly 

whether there is any intention on the pr.rt of the 

government for a policy of war or not? 

THE MONITOR: Regularly every yerr. 

A I hEve no knowledge whatsoever of the rela-

tions between the plsns -- strategic pirns of the 

Genercl Stcff rnd the government‘s policy. However, 

at the General Staff it is customary to formulate a 

plnn ycrrsly cnticip?.ting thr.t such ？. situntion might 
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arise so thrt the General Staff c m cope with the 

eventuality. 

Q In our country Is it not the high commnnci 

which independently makes operational plans? M r . 

Witness, I ask you in our country is it not true thrt 

the government Is an advisory orgnnization, advisory 

body, a m that the high commc?nd independently of the 

government formulntes oporptlonal plans? ’ 

THE MONITOR: Advisory to the Emperor. 

A ^'ith respect to such problems of the highest 

command, such ns the relationship between the govern-

ment and the high commr.nd, I do not know c thing, 

Q In your cffidavit, M r . Witness, you state 

thrt you had participated in formulrting c,n operrtionel 

plan. Did you or did you not do so at the instructions 

of the government or the ccbinet? 

A In formulrting operations plans we always 

acted according to the orders from our superiors end 

we hrd nothing to do with the cabinet. 

THE MONITOR: No direct orders from the 

cabinet. 

Q Then the fact that operational plcns were mode 

against g specific country does not m c r n , does it, 

tht:t the government or ccbinet hrd nny desire to make 

war on thrt country? 
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THE PRESIDENT; Thrt isn't within the scope 

of the affidavit. We are not going to take opinions 

of thst type from this class of witness. His rraik 

is not sufficiently high to warrant such a question. 

Q M r . Witness, you testified with rcspect to 

formulating opsrrtionr丄 plans for the yerrs 194-2 snd 

1943. Were new plcns formulated for the yerrs 194-4 

nnd 1945? 

THE INTERPRETER; Corroction: You testified 

in your affidavit thnt you had prrticipeted in the 

formu] ''.tlon of operational plens for the jiorr 194-3. 

rnd 1942. Were nc^w pirns mPde in 1944 and 19-^5' ？ 

A Yes. I will answer to thnt question, operation-

al plans were msdc for the ars 194-4 and 19-4-5. 

Q Can you give the outline of those plans? 

A Operational pl&ns for the j'-onrs 1944 and 194-5 

consists <3. of defensive strategic plens. 

THE MONITOR: Strategical defensive plans. 

THE ェ赃RPRETEH: Strategical defensive plans, 

rather, 

Q 

A 

Q 

Is thr.t the end of your rc-ply? 

Yes, thnt is all. 

23 0 You just spoke of strctegic defensive plans. 

24 Now, even in cr.se such pirns were offensive in nr.ture, 

25 thrt doesn't mean thrt there were n.ggressive designs, 
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Isn't that so? 

MR. G O L U N S K Y ;エ object to the question as 

calling for the opinion of the witness on matters on 

which his opinion cannot be founded. 

THE PRESIDENT: Do you wish to support your 

question, Dr. KIYOSE? 

DR. KIYOSE: I thought it would be mcde much 

clearer if some explanation was made with resp、ct to 

defensive strategical operations to which the witness 

testified r.nd offensive sti^ateglc op； rations, the 

difference betwoen the two. 

THE PRlSIBENT : I can't conceive thr.t there , 

is any difference in these circumstances. You might 

ask whether there is that difference here but that 

wasn't the question actually. 

Q Then, as the Court said, Mr. Witness, will you 

briefly explain the difference between a defensive 

£:nd an offensive opcr •^ion? 

A Is the purport of your question this, thrt 

an offensive operation mesns ?.n operation which would — 

by which the t errltory of a foreign country is invcsded 

by ths attacking army? Is th?t the idea of the ques-

tion? Or do you mean whether or not it is aggression 

or not? 

Q In your cffidavit you mention offensive 
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operations, in the latter pu^rt of your affidavit, and 

that is why I should like for you to make this point 

clear. 

THE MONITOR: Incluciing the point you just 

mentioned, 

A Whether a military operation is to be considered 

as a defense or offense is a purely strategic matter, 

and whether r. war is a war of aggression or not is 

completely without the scope of strategic matters r.nd 

I wouldn't be able to sry anything about it., 

THE MONITOR; Slight corrections Whether 

the offensive opcrrtion constitutes aggression or not 

is outside of the operation plan, Thrt is the war plan. 

Thrt I don't know anything nbout• 

5
 

2
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Q In your testimony v.'ith respect to the year 

1942, K r . F i t n e s s , you spoke of the first phase and 

the second p h a s e , and later after that the third phase, 

v’ere the plans of that phase of which you spoke the 

westward movement? Fas there such a place as that? 

THE MONITOR ？ A slight correction. You 

spoke of the first phase snd the second p h a s e , and 

later on you spoke of the vjestward movement, w h i c h 

gave the Impression thr.t there wcs a third phase to 

this. ”’as there such a third phase or following 

phases? 

A According to the strategic lolan which I 

knew personally there was no such plan as a p l a n of 

the western f r o n t , Outer Mongolia and Baikal region. 

Q M r . W i t n e s s , do you know of the years 

and 1905， the time of the first Kusso-Japanese w a r , 

whether or not Japan already had a planned phase 

to fight Russia r.t the time? 

THE I.:ONITOR ； A slight correction. Do you 

k n o w , M r . W i t n e s s , that through the years 1904 and 

1 9 0 5 , at the tiire of the F.usso-Japanese w a r , whether 

or not there wp.s cny year in the Japanese history 

w h e n there -were no plans vis-a-vis Soviet B.nssla, 

operational plsns? 

A N o , I don't know about that. 
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Q Lastly, in the second part of your affidavit, 

namely, on page there is a staterent from you to 

the effect that since 194-1 the Kwantung Army was 

re-inforced。 Since then has there been any move-

ment of these troops for dersloyment to other areas, 

other theaters resulting in a decrease of the strength 

of the Kwantung Arny? 

A Out of the troop re-inforcement in the 

suT-nier of 194-1 a considerable niin'ber was derloyed 

and sent to the Tacific front5 that is, the frcnt 

against the United States, since 1943. 

DR. KIYOSE； That concludes my cross-

examination, 

CROSS-EXAI.:iNATION (Continued). 

BY MR. BLAKENEY; 

Q I''r. Witness, what were your duties in the 

second section of the second division of the General 

Staff office•？ 

A As I have stated in my affidavit, I was in 

charge of general matters at first and ther with re-

srect to matters regarding ercplosrm.ent of Tnilitary 

forces. 

I OKITOR J Employment of troops in the 

whole army. 

Q l/Vhat was your connection with the drav;ing of 
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operations plans? 

A As I have stated in my affidavit, in hand-

ling matters with resrect to the employment of inili-

レ r y forces I also participated in dravdng up orera-

tional plans„ I have had occasion to see operational 

plans, 

Q In addition to having occasion to see them 

did you or did you not assist in drawing them up? 

A By operational plans, Fr。 Counsel, do you 

mean operational plans ？.gainst the Soviet Union? 

Q Yes, or any others. 

A Yes, plans 'vVhich I drew personally by order 

of ray senior officer。 

Q Were plans vis-a-vis the United States since 

19^3 up to the Thilirrine occuration-- the Fhilirrine 

operation-- and then the operational plan against 

Russia, or against other countries, if there v.'ere 

others, were all prepared, -vere they not, by the 

General Staff office? 

A Operational plins are made by the General 

Staff office under the direction of the Chief of Gen-

eral Staff5 and then after it has been revised and 

sanction received from, the Throne it becomes a for-

nralated operational plan of the army, 

Q Then in the drafting of these operational 
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operations plans? 

A As I have stated in my affidavit, in hand-

ling matters with resrect to the enployinent of ciili-

t-ry forces I also participated in draiving up orera-

tional p l a n s . エ have had occasion to see operational 

plans. 

Q In addition to having occasion to see then 

did you or did you not assist in dra-ft-ing them up? 

A By operational plans5 I'r。Counsel, do you 

mean operational plans against the Soviet Union? 

Q Yes, cr any others. 

A Yes3 plans '.vhlch I drew rersonally by order 

of ray senior officer, 

Q Were plans vis-a-vis the ITrited States since 

194-3 up to the Fhilirtine occiiration-- the thilipcine 

operation-- and then the operational plan against 

Russia, or against other countries, if there were 

others, were all prepared, were they not, by the 

General Staff office? 

A Operational r i m s are made by the Gereral 

Staff office under the direction of the Chief of Gen-

eral Staff, and then after it has been revised and 

sanction received from the Throne it becomes a for-

mulated operational plan of the arr：}'. 

Q Then in the drafting of these operational 
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plans no assisti.ice '.vas received froin the outside of 

iny nature, is that right? 

A By outside do you mean outside the Gener?.! 

St,ff office? 

Q That is 池 a t I mein. 

A Ko assistance in connection with anything 

outside the Gensr-.l Staff office itself。 

Q Therefore, in the drafting of the operations 

plan ig^.inst the Soviet Union the conTmanding general 

of the Kwantung Army had nothing to do with such plan, 

Is th?.t correct? 

A With respect to the operational pli-.n vis-a-vis 

the Soviet Union, I might siy tint in connection '.vith 

the relationship bet〜Yeen the General 3t:iff office -.nd 

the Comirander-in-Chief of the Kw•？.ntimg Ariry, thnt the 

Chief of the General St?.ff, r.fter reporting and re-

ceiving th8 sc.nction of the Throne, '-vould send di-

rections with rest5ue.t to the or-err.tionil plans to 

the Chief or Commanding Gencr?.! of tho Kvvantung Ariny, 

who adopts it on the basis of the plains forマ.nrded to 

him and formul-^tes his p h n s . 

Q That is to s，‘y，th-r.t the plans forw-rded to 

him by the General St?.ff office. ？.re his orders, is 

that correct? 

A If ェ should put it more liter?.lly in Jinanese, 
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I would say that as folloivs: operationnl orders with 

respect to the operational plr.ns of the Imperial A m y 

of such and such a fiscal year, with respect to this 

order of the Chief of the Ariry General Staff, after 

reporting and receiving the sanction of the Throne, 

sends instructions of the order to the Commanding Gen-

eral of the Kwantung Army r.nci the Comnander-in-Chief 

of the Kwantimg Army acts in accordance with this 

order, together with which coir:c-s an Imperial order, 

or Imperi?.! comnnnd, after which sanction has been 

received. Therefore, the Commanding General acts in 

accordance with the orders of the Eaporor as Gener-^l-

issimo。 

Q In iddition to the annual operations plan 

against the Soviet Union, were there any prepared in 

the General Staff office, annual operations plans 

against other nations as well? 

A As regards other countries, Jaでan had al-

re?.dy engaged in war .ne United States and Britian and 

China ？しnd, therefore, actual operation plans were al-

ready being carried into effect。 

Q エ am not referring specifically to the time 

when wご‘r w?:s in progress, but I mean in general were 

the wr.r plans prep-ired innur.lly. 

A Yes, with respect to the years with "which I 
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am f，.miliar; that is，1939 and just before the out-

break of v;ar in 1941, the plans were already formulated, 

in addition to the opsrc'.tional plan against the Soviet 

Union, operational pl?.ns in the event of American-

Japanese T/yar, r.nd in the event of British-Japanese war. 

Q And .?.nn-ual plans regarding operations against 

China? 

TEE PRESIDENTs He his not made .:ny admission 

about annu-?.! pl'̂ .ns,つ‘s f?.r as エiindGrstand him. He 

spoke of particular years, but you can clo?.r th.it up 

if you u'ish. 

BY m . ELAKEKEYs 

エ i m d G r s t o o d o t h e r w i s e , but I v;iii "be 

g l D . d to bring it out. 

Q • F:r. Witness, during the time tin,t you served 

in the operr.tion soction of the General Stiff office 

and for icany y.$ars p: ior to that time, Is it or is it 

not true that the Gonoral Stiff office annunlly pre-

pared operational plans of the type vvhich we are now 

discussing? 

A Y.:、Sj th" t is fact. 

Q You h:ivc spoken of yourself destroying the 

1939 operations plan against Soviet Russia。 Was that 

such an annual piin? 

A Yes。 
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Q You Innve referrod also to operation plans 

against the Soviet Union for the years 1941 rxnd 1942. 

Were these also such annual operations plans? 

A Yes. 

Q Then my question, which M s not been answer 3d, 

was % were such annual plans drawn also for operations 

in the event cf hostilities with China? 

A The conflict with China began in 1937, but I 

am only personally familiar with the plans since 1939» 

at whicli time the conflict with China was already in 

progress; therefore, the operational plans v/ere al-

ready being carried out. 

IKE FRESIDEKT: Does his knowledge of other 

countries extend before 1937? 

•IKE WITNESS s No, 

BY LIR, BLAKEIJEYi' 

Q Were you also farailiar during your period of 

service in the General Staff office with the annual 

plans to bG used in the event of hostilities with the 

Philippines, French Indo-China, and perhaps other 

countries? 

A For the Philippines, yes5 but エ don't re-

member for the others, 

Q As エ uncierstand from your affidavit, these 

operations plans wer- periodically doatioyod after 
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adoption of later plans. Is my understanding correct? 

A Y e s . 

Q Then, as a matter of routine in the General 

Staff office, operational plans were annually drawn 

up providing for operation against countries with 

which Japan might come in conflict, and the plans 

were periodically revised and then destroyed, is that: 

correct? 

A Y e s . The n l s n s a s I have stated before, 

were annually made, and when the nex+.. new year ap-

proached the nlans for the former year were destroy-

ed. But even durinp a yesr plans were constantly re-

vised to move in accordance with the International 

situation. 

Q Do yon knoTV whether t" st routine is the prac-

tice in General Ftaff offices through the world? 

THE PrESIDENT: Let him say first whether he 

served in any general staff office other than Japan. 

M R . BLAKENEY； Obviously he did not, but I 

asked him whether he knew, sir. 

THE P R E S I D E N T ;エ suDOOse we know that nlans 

are prepared in the general staff offices of other 

countries5 but what they wcnild be about we would not 

know, nor would h e , 

M R . BLAKENEY; Nor do I , but I think none of 
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1 j us care, except tlio fact that they do exist. We will 

2 ChangG the subject, 

3 Q You havG stated in your affidavit that the 

operations plans for 1942 vis-a-vis Soviet Union, was 

an offonsive plan。 

A SincG 1942? 

Q Tes. 

IKE PRESIDEト了T; This is a convenient break, 

I'-ajor Blakcney。 Wc 诉ill adjourn nov,' until haif-

past one’. 

C^Theroupon; at 1200, a rcccss vras 

takon,) 
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The Tribunal met, pursuant to recess, at 1330. 

MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Major Blakeney. 

BY M R . BLAKENEY (Continued)： 

Q I will repeat the question which I was put-

ting when we recessed. You have stated in your 

affidavit, Mr. 'Witness, that the operations plan for 

194-2 was an offensive plan. May we take this to mean 

that this plan and other plans of a similar nature 

were drawn in accordance with the military precept 

that offense is the best defense? 

THE PRESIDENT: You hardly need his assistance 

on that, but let him answer. 

A I know that offense is the best defense, 

and a good offensive is the best defensive according 

to the principles of strategy. 

Q Did these various operations plans Include 

within them the time at which they were to be put into 

operation? ‘ 

A I do not understand the meaning of your ques-

tion. 

Q Did the 1942 operations plan, vis-a-vis the 
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Soviet Union, for example, contain a provision 

that It should go into effect at a particular time-一 

that operations should commence at a particular time? 

A There is no mention of any particular date 

for the coimnencement of the operations. 

Q As a matter of fact, did not these plans 

provide that they should not go into effect until 

such time as orders were given by the Grand Imperial 

Headquarters'^ 

A In my recollection there is no -- I do not 

recall any provisions of this matter in the operations 
» 

plan. '71th respect to the commencement of hostilities 

against a third power this is within the -- this be-

longs to the Imperial authority and is prohibited --

correction; the conunanding general of the Kwantung 

Army cannot do it on his own initiative, that is, 
I 

commanding generals in the field were prohibited from 

taking their own initiative Inasmuch as the authority 

belonged to the Imperial authority. 

Q The 1939 annual plan for operations In con-

nection ？7ith the Soviet Union was never carried out, 

was It? ’ 

A I do not think the operations plan were 

carried into effect, 
Q The 1940 plan was not carried into effect, 
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was it? 

A Inasmuch as the operations plan formulated 

by the General Staff office as against the Soviet 

Union was to be enforced only in the event of a 

general outbreak of general hostilities between Japan 

and the Soviet Union, such plans were not carried 

out until the 8th of August, 1945, when those 

hostilities began. 

C In drawing your annual plans for operations 

against the Soviet Union, did you use certain estimates 

of the Soviet strength on which to base your plans? 

A Hatters with respect to Soviet national 

strength, military strength and operational ability 

were studied by the St.cond Department of the General 

Staff office; in other words, the department handling 

military intelligence. I do not know the details. 

Q But is It not true that the First Section 

of the General Staff office in preparing operations 

plans took into account the estimates of Soviet 

strength, in this case prepared by the Second Section? 

A Yes, they were taken into account. 

And what did those estimates show as to the 

relative strength of the Japanese Kwantung Array and 

the Soviet Far Eastern Army during the years in which 

you were working in this section? 
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m , G0LUN3KY: If the Tribunal please, 

the prosecution objects to this question as being 

outside the scope of direct examination, 

THE PRESIDENT: He could be asked whether 

the plans he drew up or assisted in drawing up were 

based on the strength of the Russian Army and, if so, 

on wha^ strength. Major Blakeney‘s question is not 

substantially different, iDut I think in the form I 

suggested it would be less objectionJle. 

MR. BLAKENEY: The first half of the 

President's question I believe he has just answered. 

I will ask him the second half. 

BY MR. BLAKENEY (Continued): 

Q Upon ?;hat estimates of the strength of the 

Soviet Far Eastern Army did you base the operations 

plans in which you yourself participated during the 

years that you were working in the General Staff office? 

A I do not recall the exact figures inasmuch 

as these figures change from year to year. However, 

what エ do remember is in 194-2, according to the estim-

ate or judgment given by the Second Section of the 

General Staff office, the strength of the Far Eastern 

Soviet Army was about twenty-five divisions ground 

forces. 

Q Is that the only figure which you can 
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remember at this time? 

A As to that I do not recall the exact figures. 

Q Are you able to remember and state how this 

strength of twenty-five divisions in 194-2 compared 

with the strength of the Kwantung Army at che same 

period? 

A I recall that "che forces under the control 

of the Commander-in-Chief of the Kwantimg Array at 

that time was about fifteen divisions, 

THE MONITOR: In Manchuria. 

Q And are you able to state in general wi..ether 

a proportion somewhat similar to that obtained during 

the years that you were working on operations plans 

against the Soviet Union? 

-A In comparing the strength between our forces 

and the forces of the opposite party, we followed the 

principle of estimating the air force, the strength 

of the air force, the strength of the ground force, 

the supply capacity in the rear, as well as topograph-

ical factors； but as I do not recall the exact figures 

I cannot say at this time. 

0 Do you recall it as a fact that during the 

period when you were working on operations plans the 

Japanese strength of the Kwantung Army was always sub-

stantlally less than that which ypur Second Spr^t.inn 
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estimated to be the strength of the Soviet Far :3astern 

Army? 

A '?hat I said just a moment ago v/as the 

division strength on the ground; but as to general 

or overall strength we have to take into consideration 

air forces as well as other units which constitute an 

army. , 

Q I am asking you whether, taking those things 

into consideration, it was or was not a fact that 

during the period of time in question the strength 

of the Kwantimg Army was less than what you estimated 

the strength of the Soviet Far Eastern Army to be? 

A Do you mean the number of soldiers? 

Q That is one Item, Suppose you give us the 

answer in connection with that item first. 

THE PRESIDENT: I think total strength will 

be sufficient for our purposes. 

Q Then five us a comparison of the total 

strength in any way in which you are able to make the 

comparison. 

A I do not have -- my memory is not exact 

enough to give you a full and exact answer. 

MR. BLAKENEI: That is all. 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. McManus. 

MR. McIlilNUSi If your Honor please, I would 
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like to ask this witness a few questions on duress 

only so if the questions go outside the scope of the 

affidavit I hope the Tribunal will bear with me. 

THE PRESIDENT: We can concede you no 

liberty not allowed to others, Mr. McManus. The rule 

applies to all. 

皿 . M c M A N U S : Have I not the right ~ 

THE PRESIDENT: Proceed to put your questions 

and we will tell you. That is the only way to decide. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION (Continued) 

BY 1.1 McMANUS: 

Q 7ould you state, please, the circ^jmstances 

of your internment? 

A Early September last year I went to Habarovsk 

in the company of the Commander-in-Chief, General 

YMJADA. 

o There have you "been since then? 

A I was with the Commander-in-Chief for two 

months since then, and then was taken to a camp to-

gether vvlth military personnel in general, officers 

and men. 

Q Are you presently charged with a crime? 

A No. 

Q How long have you been in Tokyo? 

A I came here the 17th of last month. 
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Q Have you had any conversations with anyone 

since you have been here? 

THE PRESIDENT: About this case. 

0 About this case? 

A Only two -- Colonel Rosenblit and Chief 

Prosecutor, Mr. Keenan. 

Q ” /hen was the last conversation you had with 

a member of the prosecution staff? 

A Two nights ago I met Mr. Keenan. 

Q Did you know Itr. Semyonov and Mr, Rodzayevsky' 

I do not. 

Didn't you meet 

N o , I have not. 

Do you know the 

A 

0 

A 

Q 

executed? 

A No, I do not. 

THS PRESIDENT 

promise or what? 

MR. !;IcMANUS: 

THE P R E S I D M T 

them in an internment camp? 

I have not met them, 

fact that they have be.n 

'That is this, a threat 

beg your pardon, your Honor, 

Is this a threat? 

MR. MCI.'L'.NUS: Your Honor, I would like to 

find out whether or not the fact that these iren have 

been executed has any bearing on this statement which 

was made the 26th, two days ago, by this witness -- oi 

the 27th of September, I am sorry. I would just like 
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to point out to the Tribunal, if the Court please, 

at least I was endeavoring to find out whether or 

not the fact that these men who are not produced 

here and who have been executed might have had some 

bearing upon the testimony that this witness is 

offering right now. 

THE PRESIDENT: Is there any further 

cross-examination? 

No further cross-examination. 

DR. KIYOSE: No cross. 

COLONEL ROSEMBLIT: There is a question in 

redirect examination. 

REDIRECT EXjUONATION 

BY COLONEL ROSENBLIT: 

Q TTien answering the defense counsel's 

question you said that no people other than those 

who worked in the Army General Staff participated 

in the "working out of the operation plans. Do you 

or do you not know whether the brains of the Army 

General Staff "were given by superior governmental 

officers or superior officials in the country any 

assirnments with regard to tho operation plans in-

cluding operation plans against the TT.S.S.R.? 

A As I understand, there is no interference 

in the formulation of operational plans by the ._ 
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General Staff office. 

THE PRESIDENT: I did not hear the English 

answer. "7e heard no answer in English. 

THE INTERPHETER: I will repeat, sir. In 

a.0 far as I know there is no outside interference 

in the formulation of operational plans by the 

General Staff office. 

THE PRESIDENT: The witness is released on 

the usual terms. 

(^".'hereupon, the witness was excused.) 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT: To corroborate Lieutenant 

Colonel SEJIMA, Ryuzo‘s testimony concerning the 1942 

plan of war in the Kwantung Jlrmy, I shall submit in 

evidence the photostatic copy of the statement of 

General KITん Seiichi, written by himself in the 

Japanese language on April 20 through April 2 3 , 1 9 4 6 , 

General KITii, Seiichi, was commending general of the 

6th Army of the Kwantung ムrmy from October, 1941, 

until October, 1944, and from October, 1944, he was 

commanding general of the first front of the Kwantung 

•Army，prosecution's document N o . 2467, 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Logan. 

I+ffi. LOGjIN: object to that part of this 

affidavit going into evidence which is contained on 

page five, the last paragraph. The first sentence in 
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that paragraph is a conclusion of this particular 

witness which is not based on any facts set forth 

in his affidavit and attempting to fix responsibility 

for certain acts, which is usurping the functions of 

this Court and not within the province of the witness. 

• I might remind the Tribunal that a similar 

statement was stricken from another affidavit last 

Friday. 

THE PRESIDENT: "te think we should read the 

whole of the affidavit before we come to a conclusion. 

If the statement is as bare as Mr, Logan suggests, 

it may have no value. 

The document is admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

2467 will receive exhibit No. 835. 

( h e r e u p o n， t h e document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 835 and was received in evidence.) 
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COLOrlEL ROSENBLIT: 

As KITA, Seichl, puts it in his testimony, 

the fact that he held those offices gave him gn o p p o r - . 

tunity of getting fully acquainted with the plans of 

war against the U.S.S.R. that were in the Kwaritung 

Army at that tiire; he likewise was able to familiarize 

himself with the preparatory measures carried on in 

connection with war against the U.S.S.R. 

If the Tribunal please,エ quote from page 12: 

"Preuarator；' .ieasuras. 

"Heike District: In the peace time there were 

in this district divisions of the Fourth Army and 

one detachment of border guards. The Armv Headquarters 

was at Suiwu. Before the v?ar 肥:；opened against Soviet 

Russia the Second Area Army and Northern Army were to 

be set up at Tsitsikar and Heike respectively." 

Correction, please: Not the Northern Army; 

the N Army. 

"K Army sesraed to be changed to 8th /rmy later. 

This formation was to be made by diverting four divi-

sions from China and Japan. Consequently the Second 

Area Army was "to have attained a strength of six divi-

sions before tne outbreak of ivar , that is. There were 

three divisions of tb'； 4th Army at Sunwu, two divisions 

of 8th Army at Heike and one division under the direct 

control oi' the Area Army. Besides, the 6th Army under 
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the Second Area Army consisting of the 23d Livision 

and the Arshan detachment (about one division strong) 

should be increased by tbe addition of another divi-

sion aftar the outbreak of war. Two more divisions were 

to be acQOQ in the future. 

"Maritime Province District: Those stationed 

in peace time in this district were three divisions of 

the ^th Army, three divisions of the 3rd' Army, the 

71st Division at HuncLung and one division under the 

direct control of the Kwantung Army at-Chiamusu 一一 eight 

Divisions in all together with two tank divisions. 

In 194-1, 20th Army Headquarters was estajlished at 

Tsinlng and to that army was given one division each 

from the , anc 5tu Armies. Prior to the outbreak of 

war, the 1st Area Army Headquarters, -̂ nd the 2nd Army-

Headquarters were to be set up at Kutanchiang and 

Chlentao respectively accoroiiig to Plan B." 

Correction: According to Plan Otsu, 

"Eight more divisions "vvere to be transferred 

to this district from Japan and China, making the First 

Area Army possess fifteen divisions and two tank divi-

sions, that is, three divisions and one tank division 

of the 5th Army, five divisions nnd one tank division 

of the 20th Army, three divisions of the 3rd Array, two 

divisions of the 2nd Army and two divisions under the 
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direct control of the First Area Army. In addition 

there was one air force army under the direct control 

of the Kwantung Army Commander with 1,000 planes. The 

Kwantung Army W-TS expected to be in the above condition 

on the Enstern, Northern and Western fronts just before 

the opening of war against the U.S.fS.R. according to 

the Plan Otsu. 

"Offensive Plan: In accordance with the 

offensive Plan Otsu we expected to seize the entire 

Far Enst as far as Baikal in four successive stops. 

In the first step the 4th and the N Armies of the 

Second Area Army were to carry out demonstrations on 

the Russian border near S u m m and Heike, pretending 

offensive preparp.tions by occasionally shooting into 

Russian territory. No actual offensive, however, was 

to be made. Thus the Red Army was expected to be 

fettered vjithln that area. Should the Red Army stprt 

an offensive it must be checked. The 6th Army should 

maintain its positions at Hailor and Arhshan. In cnse 

an attack was made by the Red Army from Chita vin 

Manchuria it must be checked by keeping these posi-

tions firm. In this case, the 1st Area Army in the 

Maritime Province District would act decisively on the 

offensive according to the following plan." 

Then f0ll0'.vs a detniloc description of the 
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operation of each army of the 1st Front, which I lenve 

out, and pass directly to the summing up of the first 

str-nge operations. 

Quote from page 13； 

"All t h e s G forces were to press the Red kTViy 

at Voroshilov, and pnrt of them, after seizing Voro-

shllov, were to cooperate with the JapnnosG Navy nt 

Yuanshan to capture Vladivostok by envelopiKent. This 

was to •and the first stage. Its chief object was to 

socura Jnpan proper anc. the industrial arens of M-m-

churia from the Red Army's air raids from the Hnritime 

Province distirict;, by'entirely occupying the district, 

"Second Stage: In case the first stage of 

the offensive was successful, the mr.in force of the 

First Area. Army w^s to aovanco Northwnrd toward 

Hibarovska along the railroad,le^.ving part of the 

Array in the Mnritime Pr ovine a to mnint。‘in the occupicd 

area. The division stationed at Chiamusu woulc occupy 

the positions facing Luiiinsk to protect the wings of the 

First and Second Armies in the vicinity. At this timo 

the 4th and the N Armios of the S&cond Area Army vvould 

cooperate with the First Area Army .and commence an 

offensive op.3i*?tion from He ike and its vicinity; cross 

tho Amur； seize BlagoveshchonskjKuibyshevska and 

Svobodn.i nnd cut off tho Siborian Rnllwav. One part . 
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of the forces v;ere t,へ defend the West and the main 

force ？;as to move eastward along the r^ilY/sy line to 

Habarovsk. Then the First and the Sacond Aren Armies 

weru to cooperate in attacking in a decisive battle 

the Red Army from both aides and occupy Khabarovsk. 

This wns to conpleto tho second st:\ge, 

”Third Stage: After the occupation of 

Khabarovsk the Second Area Army would immediately turn 

westward to m-'ko preparations for the reinforcements 

nccessary for the future offensive operations upon t’ie 

Zabaikalye, At this time the 6th Array- at H^ilar was 

to bo reir.forced raising its strength to four divisions 

which wore to prepare to advance the attack. In the 

Maritime Province the First Area Army was to secure 

the Important distivicts nnd tha rear of the Second 

Area Army. The ni-?.in force of the Second Area Army 

would turn West after completing preparations and 

commence the advnnca to Chita along the r?.llv7ay. As 

soon Ts thG Sccond Area Aruy's main force reached Mogn-

ch3, the 6th Array was immediately to start tb.. attack 

by bioaking through the border near Sanho and Man-

churia. And the 6th Army wns to act in cooperation 

with the Socond Area Army's main force and advance to 

Chita and its southorn area. On seizing Chita and its 

vicinity, the Second Area Army wns to secure important 
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districts in the West ； and thus the operation of tho 

third stage was to come to a close. 

"In the fourth stage it was plnnnod to conti-

nue the offensive until the Zabarkalye as far as Lake 

B-iikal was seized. But I do not know about the offen-

sive plan 01 the fourth stage, 

"Operations RcgaroIng Outer Mongolia: In 

the third stage, at the same time as the cornmencement of 

the adv;?nce of the 6th Army, the Arhshan Detachrnent 

(approximately one division) was to have been brought 

under tho direct ccntrol of the Second Area Army to 

combine with and take command of tho Mongolian force 

in Manchuria (approximately one division) and advance 

to Chita from Arhshan via T-^npsakbulak, BaintuinGn nnd 

Ulan-Orrsomon. This unit would cover the right iving 

of the Second Area Array by marching through the eastern 

pnrt of Outer Mongolia. 

"Maintaining coordination of all Military 

Operations the Imperigl Headquarters was to transfer 

one mechanized army group from North China and to have 

it begin strategic operations from Kalgan toward 

Ulan-Bator. But I am not able to explain tho plan for 

the future development of the offensive action since 

I don't know it. Tho general outline of tho offensive 

plan against Soviot Russia is as nbovo, This plan for 
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the offensive operation against the Soviet Union In 

1942 was set up by the G e n e n l Staff and the Kwnntung 

Army； it Tjas revised every year thereafter. This plan 

for Japanese military measures existed till around the 

middle of 1944. Since Japan faced difficult condi-

tions in tho battle field of Greater E.?st Asia W a r , 

shG could not carry out this plan." 
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M r , President and r.embers of the Interna-

tional T r i b u n a l , I should like to draw your attentior. 

to the evidence that the defendant UMEZU, Yoshljlrl 

was Coinnanding General of the Kwantung Army at that 

time and that he himself took part in working out the 

plans of an aggressive vJar against the U. S, S. R., 

whereas the defendant TOJO, Hideki, was Prime Minister 

and concurrently War Minister of Japan at that time. 

THE PKESIDEKTs Major Blakoney. 

ET" BLAKENEY2 I wish to make the usuc.l 

request for information concerning the status of this 

• w i t n e s s , a n d t h e "usual r e q u e s t f o r d i r e c t i o n tacit h e 

be produced for cross-examination. 

THE PKESIDEIIT s Ilr. Smith, 

IJL. SKITH: If your Honors please, in the 

last paragraph at the "botセoin of page 4, first sen-

tence , I ask your Honors to strike It out. Iu says: 

"In 1935 Japan, by resorting to every pos-

sitle means, induced Soviet Russia to sell the right 

and interest of the Chinese Eastern Railways." 

That is a bald statement, not supported by 

any facts anywhere 1 . t h i s statenent, and infringes 

the province of the Court, .and I submit to your 

Honors a statement of that sort ouf^ht not to be per-

mitted in evidence in this case. 
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THE P R E S I D E m、 We think it is Irrelevant 

to any issue that is raised in the Indictment. The 

objection is upheld。 

We had better settle the question raised 

by Major Blakeney in the first instcnce -- raised 

by Mr. Logan, rather,て.'hat is part of the nffldavit 

can be said to support that bare statement as ^o the 

responsibility of vr.rious Individuals, 

THE PRESIDENT ； Minister Golmisky. 

im, GOLUNSEYs The part objected to by the 

learned counsel is half a statement of responsibility 

and half a list of d±:^ferunt people who held official 

positions in some way connected with tho irllitary 

activities in Manchuria, and inasmuch as we can es-

tablish that from other sources we do not particularly 

insist on this nart of tレ.e affidavit. 

THE PtESIDENT; The part objected to oj 

Mr. Logan anounts to the swearing of issues without 

any supporting fact, and vjill be disregarded. The 

objection Is upheld. 

Colonel riosenblit。 

•COLONEL ROSENBLIT: If the Tribunal please, 

エ shall call for direct examination the witness, 

MATSUMURA, Tonokatsu, former Major—General of the 

Japanese Army, who from October,1941,turough 
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August, 1943 ？ worked in the Second Department of the 

Japanese A m y General Staff, and from August, 194*3, 

until the surrender worked i.j. the Kwantung Army-

Headquarters , f i r s t In the capacity of Chief of the 

First (operations) Section, and since March, 194-5, as 

Deputy Chief of the Kwantung Army Headquarters. 

THE PRESIDENT； Mr. Logan's application for 

the production of the deponent KITA will be considered, 
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T O M O K A T S U M A T S U M U R A , called as a 

witness on behalf of the prosecution, being first 

duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY COLONEL ROSENBLIT: 

Q M r . Witness, tell the Tribunal your name and 

your first name. 

A MATSUMURA, Bsrmokatsu. 

Q Your age? 

A Born 32nd year of Meiji， 1899. 

Q You worked in the Army General Staff in the 

capacity of Chief of the Fifth Section of the Second | 
！ 

Department from October, 1941, through August, 1943, i 

didn't you? ： 

A Y e s , Chief of the Fifth Section, Second Division 

Q Did you or did you not occupy the position of 

Chief of First (operations) Section of the Kwantung 

Army Headquarters from A u g u s t , 1 9 4 3 , until March, 194-5? 

A Y e s , I occupied that position. 

Q Are you a war prisoner of the Soviet Army 

at present? 
1 

A Yes, I am. I 

Q M r . Witness, you are being shown prosecution 
！ 

document N o . 2672 in the Japanese language, which is | 

your affidavit of September 27,194-6. Look through 
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this document. Is it or is It not written in your 

own hand? 

A Yes, that is mine. 

Q Does the signature which appears on allセhe 

pages of this affidavit belong to you? 

A Yes. 

Q Are the cont ts of your affidnviセ true to 

fact? 

A Yes. 

COLONEL ROSENBLIT； I tender in evidence to 

the Tribunal prosecution docnmenl No. 2672, which is 

an affidavit of the witness MATSIMIRA of September 27, 

1946, written in the Japanese language. 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document 

No. 2672 vdll receive exhibit No, 836, 

("'hereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 836 and received in evidence,) 

COLONEL E.OSENBLIT : If the Tribunal please, 

I shall read the full text of this affidavit: 

"I am iyiTSU?5JR.A, Totnokatsu, formerly Major-

General of the Japanese Army, and was born in 1899. 

I state： here as follows:-

"I served in the Japanese Army General 
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Staff Office in various capacities in and after 1929. 

In October of 1 9 4 1 , I became chief of the ^th section 

(Soviet Russian Intel: igence) of the 2nd dept. (In-

telligence) in the Army General Staff Office。 In 

August of 1943, I was transferred from that post to 

that of the chief of the 1st section (operations) of 

the Kwantunc Army Headquarters. In March 1Q45 T was 

appointed Vice-Chief" of Staff, Kwantung Army, remain-

ing in that post until the surrender. 

"I testify as follows the facts I ！aiew in 

relation to my duties durinp the period me'itioned 

above:-

" 1 ) H a v i n g arrived at the "Headquarters of 

the Kwantung Army in 1943, I, as the Chief of the 

Strategy Section, was first of all informed of the 

operations plan kept by the Headquarters. At this 

time I was Informed of the directives of the Army Gen-

eral Staff concerning the operations plan against 

Soviet Russia for 194-2 and the operations plan itself 

of the Kwantung Army Headquarters based upon the 

said directives. 

"The directives of the Array General Staff 

instructt-d the Kwantune： Army Headquarters to form an 

operations plan against Soviet Russia with the occu-

pation of tho Maritime Provinces of Soviet Russia and 
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the destruction of the air bases in the Maritime 

Province as the general objectives, and also to 

focus the principal attack upon Voroshilov. It was 

also written in the directives that the Kwantung 

Army should make preparations for further operations 

after occupation of the Maritime Prnvincos. 

"The operations plan made by t'lc Kwantung 

Army Headquarters according to the above diroctivos 

in 1942 contained the followinp items:-

" 1 ) T h e general tasks of tbe Kwantunfr Army. 

"2) Distribution of military strength. 

"3) The tasks of the different fronts and 

armies. 

"The tasks as set forth in the afore-men-

tioned directive of the Array General Staff were Indi-

cated as the fcncral tr.sks of the Kwantujif Army. 

"In the item of the distribution of military 

strength, it was planned that the First Front, the 

Second Front and the Sixth Army should participate in 

the. operation against Soviet Russia, The First Fcont 

comprised 4 armies (the and, 3rd, 20th, 5th Army)， 

consisting of 15 infantry divisions, and 2 tank div-

isions. Furthermore, besides the First Front Armies, 

one independent infantry division was stationed r.t 

CHIAIITISU in order to protcct the left wing of the First 
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Area Army. 

"The Sccond Front was planned to comprise 

two Armies (the Fourth Arniy e.nd a certain other A m y ) 

consisting of seven divisions; and the Sixth Array 

consisting of four divisions. Besides these there 

were throe infantry divisions as the general reserve 

of the Kwantimg Army and the-:. Socend Air Forco Army 

consisting of four air divisions w&re under direct 

control of the Kwantung Army. 

"In the item concerning the tasks of the 

different fronts c.nd armies, the. tasi^ of the First 

Front was indicated as follovv's; that the Sccond Army-

should attack from CHIENTAO Area toward the Southern 

USS^T.I Area; that the Third Army should attack from 

TUNGNING Area toward VOROS^^ILOV; that the Twentieth 

Army should attack from tho area to the west of Lrkc 

Khanka. toward VrpOSFILOV; and that the Fifth Army 

sl^ould att;.ck from ETITOW Area toward I¥AB Area and 

thereby cut off the enemy's comtnuni cat ions extending 

from south to north and later have one part of the 

force cover the north and have another part ad^^-ance 

southward to facilitate the attack of the main force 

on VOBOS^-ILOV. Although it is not expressly indicated 

in the plan, it can bo presumed that the occupation of 

VLADIVOSTOK was to follow that of VOPOSriT.OV. 
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"The tasks of the Second Front x^ore indi-

cated as follows: that the Fourth Army and a ccrtain 

other Array should be stationed in the STJN-WU and KEI-

KO Areas respectively, whc.re thoy were to chcck the 

Soviet A r m y in the ArUR River Area. 
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"The trsk of the Sixth Army vies to strnd 

on the defensive in the HSINGAN mountrin-rrnpe rgrinst 

the Soviet A m y from ZABi.IKi.LYE end cover the offensive 

operrtion of the First Front. 

"The operrtions pirn rgrinst Soviet 

R-ussir； for 1942 v;rs signed "by Generrl UMEZU, 

CoKirr.nder of the Kv/nnt.-urg iirrny, Lie •utenrnt-Generrl 

KASふH/JRA, Chief of Strff, r,nd Colonel TL}"JJ?J., Chief 

of the Operrtions Section. 

"It T?rs not clerr to me whether r. v/rr 

rgrinst the Soviet Union would be crrried on. I 

knov/ only of mrtters rclrted to operrtions. Mrttors 

concerning the politicrl rims of ”，rr rgrinst Soviet 

Russin ”'ere under the ruthority of the government, 

rnd I know nothing rboijt, thom. As for the operr-

tions pirn rgrinst Soviet Russir. in 19^3 the /irmy 

Conerrl Strff grve us no new directives rhr.tever. 

Therefore, r.ccording to the generrl prrctice in 

the A m y , the pirn for 194.2 wrs folloif/ed in 1943 

r s T^ell, 

"Immedir.tely rfter ray as sumption of office 

in October 1941 r.s Chief of the 5th Section (Scviet-

relrtions) of the 2nd Deprrtnent, Lieutenrnt-Cenerrl 

OK/.MOTO, Seif-uku, "the Chief of the 2nd Department, 

grve- me rn order in his office to deliver the 
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intelligence relrting to セhe Soviet Union collected 

by the 5th Section to the l6th Section (GERMAN 

RELATIONS) of the 2nd Department. On this 

occrsion, L t , General OK/.MOTO explrined to me 

the.t the Intelligence v/rs wrnted by KRETSCHI.i/JR, 

Germr.n military attrche. Thenceforth, in r.ccordrnce 

v'ith the orders given by L t . Genorrl OKAMOTO, Seifnkia, 

Chief of the 2nd Deprrtment, rnd his successor L t， 

Generrl ARISUE, Seizo, I systeinrticr.lly for^rrded 

to the l6th Section (GERMAN RELATIONS) for Colonel 

KRETSCIiMAR the Intelligence regrrding Soviet mili-

trry forces, their disposition in the Fr.r Erst, 

wrr pot -ntir-l of the Soviet Union, movement of 

Soviet divisions "to the nest from the Fr.r E r s t , 

intern?.]- movements of Soviet strength, r.nd recon-

strnction of the withdrawn Soviet industries. 

These intelligences x^ere br.sed upon nrterirls 

reported to the Generrl Strff Office from Jrprnese 

nilitrry rttrches in MOSCOW ?nd vrrious other 

Intelligence sources. They were r.rrrngecl by 

officers of my section rnd rfter my exrminrtion 

were delivered directly to the l6th Section. 

Sometimes importrnt ones were delivered to the 

l6th Section r.fter エ h?d examined them end rfter 

Chief of the 2nd Deprrtment hr.d gone over them. 
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"We used to deliver intelligence to the 

l6th Section (in chrrge of C-ermrn rffr.irs)rboiit 

once r m o n t h , 

"The above wr.s written by my own hhnd 

and the contents are true.” 

The affidavit is signed by the witness 

MTSULIURA, Tomokrtsn September 2 7 , 1 9 4 6 , nnd the 

witness 7/as duly srorn in the presence of the 

U.S. Army Officers Ceptain Rolpnd Sch!7rrtz r.nd 

2nd Lic-utenr.nt Hrttori. 

The Tvitness MATSUMURふ，Tonokrtsu mry 

nov; be placed rt the dlsposrl of the Defense 

Counsel for cross-exr.ninp.tion, 

THE PRESIDENT: We will recess now for 

fifteen minutes® 

(Whereupon, ？t 1440, r. recess fps 

taken until 14-55, r.fter which the proceedings 

were resumed ？s follov's,) 
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MARSHALL OF THE COURT: The エ n t c ^ r n r ^ t i o n r ^ l 

Mllitery Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. • 

THE PRESIDENT; D r . KIYOSE. 

D R . KIYOSE5 I should like to make a brief 

cross-examination. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

B Y D R . KIYOSE: 

Q In your affidavit, thr.t is in fourth 

page of the Jrpanese affidrvit or in the third prge --

third paragraph of your affidavit in Englsih, you say 

thrt matters concerning the political aims of war cgr.inst 

Soviet Russir were under the ruthority of the govern-

ment and I know nothing rbout them. Nov;, may エ under-

stcnd thnt the fact thst our country hpd a strategic 

plnn against Soviet Russia did not. mean thrt our 

country hrd the intention of wrging ? v/ar against .=:ovlet 

Russia? Am I allowed to understcnd it In thr:t fashion? 

A That is an entirely different question. 

Q You further stnte that questions of nolicy 

were determined by the government r.nd I , myself, do 

not know snything about them. Eoes this mean, thrt not 

only you but all of you in high command, who are 

engaged in duties within the high command, did not know 

whether the government hnd intention of waging wcr 



p ， 1 4 8 

M A T S U M U H A C R O S S 

6 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

against a foreign country or not? 

THE MONITOR; Correction: That the high 

commcind or any branches theredf did not interfere 

in questions of policy which were determined by the 

government. 

A I am speaking only of myself nnd others who 

arc in similar positions, 

Q V/as it customary to formulnte strategic plnns 

against rny foreign countries v/hethcr or not the govern-

ment itself hpd the Intention of waging a v;ar against 

thdse particular countries? 

THE MONITOR: Slight corrcction: Did the 

Japanese government formulate ！nny strategic plans o.ny-

woy? 

A I saw the opcrr.tions plan only in my capacity 

as chief of the opcrr.tions section of the Kwrntung 

Army Headquarters. When I wrs in other positions エ 

didn't see such plans, so エ canit testify with respect 

to them. 

Q You belonged to the Kwrntung /rmy in the year 

1945 instecd of the ycrrs 19-^2 rnd 194-3 ごs you st&te 

In your affidcvit, isn't that right? Tell me about 

operational plans entertained by the Kwnntung Army in 

the yerrs 1944 ？nd 1945. 

A In 1944 and 1945 a sepcrato operations plan 
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for defensive purposes v;ere formulcted. 

Q Can you outline those plans briefly? 

A The plc.n for 194-4 was generally operations to 

be carried out In the border crens. Defensive operations 

in the border rreas. The opcrntionsl plans for 1945 

wrs an internal defensive plan constituting various 

plans for retreat along the s o u t h G n s t c r n border of 

ret*ion of Manchuria ?nd to carry on 一一 for the purpose 

of carrying on a holding operation. 

Q There is something which I don't understrnd 

there. Thet is the operationf^l plnn in which you 

pcrsonrlly participated weren't there. Way r.re they 

not mentioned in your nffidr.vit? 

A I only spoke in ansv;er to quest!ons r.nd thrt 

was nil thnt wrs Gsked of me during the inttrrogrtion. 

Q Does that menn thnt no question wr.s asked 

with respect to this point or thrt it was omitted 

Ister on very close study as unnecessr-ry? 

A When preparing the affidavit there wr.s no 

C^Tiestions relative to this point. 

Q How about when preparing the a f f i d r v i f 

I YGS, when I was interropnted as a prisoner 

I spoke of the entire matter. 

Q Then I sh.?.ll r.sk you another question. Wrs 

there any Instnnce of the strength of the Kw&ntung I rmy 
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being deployed and decreased during yoiir tenure of 

office in the Kwnntung Army? 

A Yes. 

Q hen did it -- rt about whrt time did it occur 

and what was the importance of the dccrecse? 

A From the summer of 194-3 up to the end of the 

vmr the Kwantung Army, units of the Kwnntung Army were 

deployed grer.tly R.nd the Kwr.ntung ；rmy V;GS reorgcnizcd. 

I can' trc.call exactly when or to what extent such a 

deployment rnd d ecrease took plccc hv.t with repsect 

to the subject, the qus stion of decrensc, the strength 

may hrvo been decreased but the number of military 

personnel not necessarily decreased. The number de-

creased at time and then returned to the normcl number, 

decrenscd again and returned to the normfil number from 

time to time. 

Q Wc?s the quality of the newly recruited troops 

was not the quality of the newly recruited troops in-

ferior to the troops which hcd formerly been recruited 

b y the Kv/antung Array? 

A Little by little the quality decreased• 

Q My last question will be regnrding intclligonce, 

Second pnrrgraph of your affidavit you write about 

informr.t士on received from the military attache, Jnpanc.se 

Embassy in Moscow. But wasn't, it a routine matねr to 
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receive InformPtion not only from the JapcnesG Fmbassy 

in the Soviet Union but from all the Japcneso abroad 

to the intelligence section of the General Staf" Offi.iC 

through the militcry attache? 

A Yts, rs you say. 

DR. KIYOSE: That is all. 

THE PIIESIDENT: Before you go, D r . KIYOSE, 

the word "deployed" wcs usr.d. Wrs it intended to use 

the word "depleted"? 

DR. KIYOSE: Y-s. 

MR. SHIMANOUCHI: I am SHIMIKOUCHI, counsel 

for the defendant OSHIMA. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION (ContinuGd) 

BY MR. SHIiiANOUCHI: 

Q German Attache Kretschmar, whose nr.me you 

mention in the last portion of your rffidnvit, where 

v;as he stationed as a railitsry attache? 

A In Tokyo. 

Q Docs thct mean that the Japrnese General 

Staff Office handed directly the intelligence : • 

concerning the Soviet Union to the G^ rm?.n Embassy? 

A I think so,.…t エ didn't see thct done myself 

with my own eyes. 

MH. SHIMAKOUCHI: Thr.t is all. 
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THE PRESIDENT: Major Furnoss. 

GROSS-EX/' MINATIOII (C ont inued) 

B Y 腿.FIJRNESS； 

Q General, on page 3 of your affidavit you 

testify thct the mat-, rials, intelligence ranterials 

which you received were rr-norted to the General Staff 

Officc from Jcpcnese militjiry r t t c h e s in Mosc-'iu Those 

military attaches were directly under the General 

StEff rnd reported directly to them, were thoy not? 

A Yv s. 

Q Arc you fcmiliar with the duties of military 

Eittaches, Japanese ns well rs other countries, and if 

so is it not their duty cs routine to gather military 

information r:nd forward it to the General Staff of 

the country of which they r.re r, national?. 

A Yes. 

THE： PRESIDENT; Mnjor Blnkeney. 

CROSS-EXAMINATIOK (Continued) 

B Y m . BLAKENEY： 

Q M r . Witness, in your r.ffidp.vit you heve stated 

thnt the pirn for the 194-2 operr.tions of the Kwr.ntung 

Army were forwarded by the General Ft-nff rnd th?.t uuon 

the bssis of those plans the Kwr.ntung Army staff drew 

ii-s plsns. Was the pirn which v;r s forwrrded from the 

General Stcff Office in Tokyo an extremely complete 
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plan? 

A I don't get v;hst you mean by thu word "comnlete, 

Q I mean, iiirs the plan complete In the sense 

thct it laid out orders for each army, group of each 

army, rnd prrhnps each division in the event of 

hostilities? 

A The order did not include such detcils. 

Q Then the pirn was drawn only in general dctrdl. 

Is that your macning? 

k Yes. The plans received from the General 

Staff Office, yes. 

Q iiiid the plPn hen required that the stnff of 

the Kwsntung Army itself ni?,ke pirns for its implementa-

tion, is thr.t correct? 

ム Yes. 

Q Nevertheless, the plsn which c?,mc. from Tokyo 

from the General Str.ff Office was the plan which Icld 

out the policy? 

A Not only general policy or aim or objective 

but the general strength of the Kwnntung Army ？,lso. 

Q Thrt is to scy thrt you, as staff officer 

of th、- Kwnntimg ムrmy, end the remainder of the stcff 

of the Kw”.ntung Army, and the commandcr in chief of 

the Kv/cntung /.rmy, had no part in formulating the 

policy. Is thr.t corrcct? 
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A Do you mcrn to formulate the policy received 

frem the General Staff Office? 

Q No,エ me£!n tliat the basic policy of what actions 

would be taken in case of hostilities, were セhose formu-

lated by Tokyo and not by the Kwantung Army. 

A Yes, you rre right. 

Q So thct, although you state in your affidcvlt 

thrt the operations plr.n against Soviet Russia for 

1942 wore signed by Generrl IMEZU rnd others, actually 

the plan ？;r.s drawn by thorn at the order of the General 

Staff Office in Tokyo, was it notク 

A The op-；; rational plans of the Kwrntung 1 rmy 

itself was mode, formulated, by the Kwantung Army. 

Q In accordance with the order received from 

the General Staff Office in Tokyo? 

A Yes. 

THE PRESIDENT: ^"ould he know to v-rhet extent 

t h e C o m m a n d e r i n C'litf of t h e K w e n t u n g A r m y i n f l u e n c e d 

the policy of Tokyo? 

THE WITNESS: All thct we know is that we 

must carry out the aims or policy determined and 

forwarded by the General Staff Office in Tokyo. 

Iffi. BLi-.KENEIs Thrt was all I intended to Gsk. 

Thrt concluding the cross-examination, I request 

the Tribunal to direct the Marshal to serve upon the 
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witness the subpoena in his custody. 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr。Chief Prosecutor. 

M R 。 I f I understand correctly, the 

cross-0xaminr.tion hr.s been completed. 

THE PREGIDEKT: Does a ny other defense counsel 

desire to crr;Gs~.:xainlne? 

HRc BLEli^rETT: No further cross-examinction, 

your Honor, 

M R . KEENムN: Thoreforo, I,!r. President, since 

this witness is in the custody of the Si^viat••Union, 

I ask the t he remain in that custody subject to the 

order of this Court thrt he return before this Tri-

bunal to give testimony r:.t the nr>proprirte time when 

he is desired by defense counsel, end thrt he not be 

required to remein here in the interim. I hrve the 

assurance from the Soviet Associrte Prosecutor, which 

エ might stnte has been rlways found to be highly 

dependeble, thrt this witness will be nvailrble at the 

Court ‘ s direction ct whrtevf.r time is required, of course 

for the legitimpte purposes of this trinl. 

I think I ought to stete to this Court th-'̂ t 

the testimony end services in thr.t regard of the witness 

MATSUMURL and G I S O S E J I M A are required for other pur-

poses in other investigations pnd tricls pending in the 

Soviet rt the nresent time. And thr.t is the reason 
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for this request. And as witnesses in thos proce'^d-

ings in the Soviet £;nd in proceedings th^t are recognized 

and provided for :i.n the Charter establishing this Court 

ard. these pro'.;Ge'"I;iiigs too. 
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THE FRSSIDEKT: Major Blakcncy. 

M R . B L A K S N E Y ;エ cannot conccivc how this 

matter is argueablc, 

THE PRESIDENTJ Well, if yoa do not want to 

arguo it, wc can give our decision. But エ might 

need, your assistance. It socms to mc thai, the sub-

poena a-.ready served on him has placcd him effective-

ly in the custody of Tr:"btinal. And tn.o position 

will not bo improved if the seeand subpoena issued 

by the def21156 is served. The position will be 

exactly the same, 

IIo•マフ v,，G r.-ast hv-ld him here untiZ YJG h-.ve 

disposed or his cvidc;nce。 He is held by the Rus-

sian authorities at thu direction of this Court 

which is an international court coir-pri3ir.g eleven 

nations and i.'hich docs not consist of mc-rGly one 

nation。 The defense should be at liberty, if .hoy 

p e r s i s t , to s c r v G the s u b p o e n a o n b i m a n d a l s o t o 

take a proof of his cvidencc, as I suggested yestcr-

d.iy. 

Subjcct to that, ho is to remain in the cus-

tody of the Kussian avthorities, but he is to be 

dealt v'itb by thora as directed by the Court so far 

as his movements arc concerncd. If it is desired to 

take him out of the jurisdiction, then that must be 
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the subject of a separate application suprorted by 

evidence, 

I have not definitely judged. That is what 

I propose, subjcct to what you have to say, Ilagor 

B l a k e n e y . 

i m . BLAIfflEEY: If the President's remarks 

constitute a direction that the witness be made 

available for consultation with the defense, that is 

all WG dc-sirc, 

THE l^RSSIDElニTs I'y collGagucs may desire 

to qualify Tvhat I said. I shall consult them. 

C^hGreupon, a discussion was had 

off the record.) 

In carrying out that direction, YJC suggest 

that you arrange with the Chief Frosccutor for a tine 

at which tliG rroof will he taken. 

E R , BLAKEKEYs Frivr.tcly, of coursc? 

IKE T^RESIDEKTs Vi/ith all prorcr s-^.fcguards 

as to his custody, but rrivately, otherwise. 

If you have ^.ny difforenco with the prose-

cution, you can ventilate it here later, 

I;!R. BLAKSEEYs That is eminently sr.tisfac-

t o r y。エ have no desire to 130001113 his guardian. 

IKE PRESIDENTS Colonel Rosenblitt. 

The witnc-ss is released on the usual terms. 
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He is still in the custody of the Court, neverthe-

less, 

(Whereupon, the witness was ex-

cused. ) 

COLOrEL ROSEKBLIT ： As evidence of serious 

preparations of Japan for an attack against the 

USSR as far back as 194-3, I shall produce in evi-

dence- the affidavit of March 2 9 , 1 9 4 6 of the Japan-

ese Major General OTSIBA, who, in 1943，was 

chief of the headquarters of the 23rd Japanese di-

vision, dislocatod in Manchuria at that time, prose-

cution document No. I98I. 

THE PRESIDEIJTs Mr. Logan. 

J H . LOGANS The defense objccts to the last 

question and answer set forth in the affidavit on 

page ten thereof on the ground, that it is a question 

of ass-uming facts not in evidence. Secondly, we ob-

ject t« the form of the question, and it is asking 

for conclusions which arc unsupported by the facts 

sst forth in the affidavit. And furthermore, it is 

calling for conclusions v;hich would usurp the func-

tions of the Court in its endeavor to determine re-

sponsibility, if any, of these accused. 

m , GCLUlvSKY! If the Itibunal pleasG, we 

agree that this affidavit be acccptod as evidence 
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with the sTception of the last question and answer, 

THE Fx^EoIDEKTs The position is covered by 

our enrlicr decision this afternoon. The objection 

is allowed. 

Colonel Roscnblitt, 

COLOKEL ROSENBLITi I want to call the 

Tribunal‘s attention to the question, line 3 on 

page 9 of the Japanese original, where the "word 

"plans" is missing by mistake. 

It is cv id Jilt from Major General OTSUEA's 

testimony that in August I943, he was present at a 

conferencc at the headquarters of the Sixth Army in 

the Town of Khailar, which confcrencc ^vas devoted 

to the question of the coining military operations of 

the Sixth Army in the Y/ar against the USSR. The 

conference was conductcd by Major General IGETA, 

chief of the headquarters of the Sixth Army, 

Hero it is as described by OTSUBA. 

エ did not get the exhibit number, 

TEE r?iESIDEKTs Admitted on the usual terms, 

CLERK OF IKE COURTS Prosecution's document 

No. 1981 will receive exhibit No. 837. 

(?/hersupon，the doctunc-nt above 

mentioned was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 837 and received in evidence.) 
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COLOI^L ROSSKBLIT.：エ c_uoto from page 6 

of the English texts 

"A As the Kwantung Army was to take the 

offensive in the areas of the i:aritimG Frovincc during 

the first step of the war against ths USSR, the 6th 

Army was to go on the defensive in its area. There-

fore, through the first two days of the confcrcncG, 

the plan of defense in the r.rca of ths 6th Army was 

dlscussGd. It y^as the schemc of the commandGr that 

we were to fight to death against the enemy in the 

Zabaikalyc Area until new divisions would -irrivc to 

the Socond front. On the third day of the conference, 

the offensive- operation was studied, 'The operation 

was to be executed by the Front and the Army, rein-

forced by ncYi formations. In this occasion, the 2nd 

front Y/as to attack in the direction of Chita. The 

commander ‘ s plan Y.'as, after c one cntra ting the main 

body in the area of Hailar, to make an attack fron 

the southern district of Lake DA1ainoor by an en-

circlemcnt movement, behind the right wing of the 

Zabaikalyc front and aせvancc to Borzia Area, destroy-

ing the enemy forccs ind cutting off their tetreat," 

I skip a number of lines and quoto further J 

"A At least twenty divisions wei-e re-

quired in order to achieve the ob;iGctlvc of att.nck 
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in the area of Chita. However, our strength in this 

area was sufficient just to make a strong resirtancGc 

Therefore, in order to attack, reinforcement of be-

tvjGen fifteen and twenty divisions from other areas 

was necessary. The regrouping of the Kwantung Army 

could he done only after the occupation of the 

Soviet Maritime Province and the accomplishment of 

the initial stage of Vvar^ ” 

Now5 if the Trlbimal please, I shall present 

the affidavit of ons more v,?itn こ ss, KITS ABA, Tatsumi, 

farmer Lieutenant-Gener^J. of the Japanese Army, 

I..IR, If the Court please, wt, make 

the usual rc-quGst that this witness be produced for 

cross-examination and that v/e be advised of his stat-

us. 

COLONEL R O S E K B L i r : Now, if the Tribunal 

please, I shall present the affidavit of one more 

tnc s E, KUSABA, Tatsiimi, former Lieutenant General 

of the Japanc-se Army, The Tribunal are aware of 

the fact that KUSABA v;as offered 一 一 

(Whereupon, Mr. Fiirncss began to 

speak ft the It^ cern.) 

THE FRESIDEKTs I will call on you, Major 

FurrxGSS, when there is nobody else talking. 

Major Furness, your application -- the 
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production of the vvitnsss you mentioned 一 - "will be 

considered, 

MR, FIRFSSfs I am referring to the affiant, 

Kaztma 0TSU30, exhibi^ 837. 

COLOIvEL H0SEK3LIT: r The Tribunal are aware 

of the fact that ICITSA3A was offered to be intro-

d u c e as a witness "by the prosecution ind was accord 

ingly sumironGd by the Trrbunal. He- was brought from 

the Soviet Union to Tokyo, and on the night Ox Sep-

temter 20, committed suicldo. I submit to the Tri-

bunal -n death certificate given by Haj丨)r Genoral 

Kislenkc, Deputy Member for the USSR, of the Allied 

Coimcil for Jaran of October 9 , 1 9 4 6 , 

Thus we "̂ rc not able to producs the witness 

KUSABA in court, and wo cin only present to the Tri-

bunal his affidavit ivrittcn by himself in the Japan-

ese language in Khabarovsk on March 25，194-6, 

I offer in ovidonce this affidavit, prose-

cution dociment llo. 1982, 

m . SHII ANOUCHIs ェ ram SHI! A丽 C H I , counsel 

for the accused OSHIIJl. I refc-r the Tribunal to 

prosGcuticn doctrnic-nt No, 1982，page 7 of the English 

text, page 10 of the Japanese teyt, through the sn-

tirs inswer to the question, "Who agreed ”dth this 

opinion?" 
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I am referring to the passage v/hsre it says 

that, among others, OSHE A "and many others and their 

activities were concentrated in attacking the terri-

tories of the USSR5 China, and the Republic of Outer 

Mongolia, and they also urged the occupation of the 

South Sea Islands by Jr-panesG forcG s" with ！ : ? . n c h u r i ュ 

as a base. 

In so far as OSHE .A is concerned, I object 

to the tendering of this document as evidence. I'y 

reasons are as follows i 

THE FRESIDENT: I v;ish you \70uld point out 

2 what particular part you arc objecting to. 

3 MR. GCLTO'SKY? Perhaps WG c.in save time if 

I say agree to withdraw the ^vholc- question and 

the whole answer, 

THE PRESIDENTS The objection is alio恥d. 

The affidavit of KISABA and the certificate 

of death are admitted on the usual terras. 

CLERK OF TH3 COU-iT； I rosccution's document 

No. 1982 and the certificate of death attached, there-

to will be given exhibit No, 838. 

(Whereupon, the documents above 

mentioned were marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 838 and received in evidence,) 

THE F R E S I D E i m It is a lengthy affidavit. 
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It may be read cn tlond?.ム We v;ill adjourn nov.; until 

half past nine on Monday morning, 

(Whereupon, at 1555， an adTourn-
\ 

inent ims taken until Monday, 21 October 

1946 at 0930い' 
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